
1

CITY O F B A RA B O O CO M M O N CO UN CIL A GE N D A
C ouncilC hambers,101SouthB lvd.,B araboo,W isconsin

Tuesday,September24,2019,7:00P .M .

Regular meeting of the Common Council, Mayor Mike Palm presiding.
Notices sent to Council members: Wedekind, Kolb, Plautz, Sloan, Petty, Ellington, Alt, Kierzek, and Thurow

Notices sent to City Staff and Media: Atty. Truman, Adm. Geick, Clerk Zeman, Finance Director Haggard, City Engineer
Pinion, Utility Super. Peterson, Street Super. Gilman, Police Chief Schauf, Parks & Recreation Dir. Hardy, City
Treasurer Laux, Fire Chief Kevin Stieve, Library Director Jessica Bergin, CDA Director, the News Republic, WBDL,
and 99.7FM

Notices sent to other interested parties: Citizen Agenda Group, Media Agenda Group, Karla and Josh Reinhardt, Jaren &
Rhonda Parchem, Kathy Siberz (St. Joseph Catholic Church)

1. C A L L TO O RD E R

2. RO L L C A L L A N D P L E D GE O F A L L E GIA N C E

3. A P P RO V A L O F P RE V IO US M IN UTE S (Voice Vote): September 10, 2019

4. A P P RO V A L O F A GE N D A (Voice Vote):

5. C O M P L IA N C E W ITH O P E N M E E TIN G L A W N O TE D

6. P RE SE N TA TIO N S (None Scheduled)

7. P UB L IC H E A RIN GS The Mayor announces that this is the published date and time to hear public comment
concerning: Approval of PUD (Planned Unit Development) for Karla and Josh Reinhardt to convert property
formerly D&S Dental Lab to a Family Day Care Center located at 1208 9th Street.

8. P UB L IC IN V ITE D TO SP E A K (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for Council
action if recognized by the presiding officer.)

9. C O N SE N T A GE N D A (Roll Call)
CA-1…Approve the accounts payable to be paid in the amount of $_____________

CA-2…Approve two Picnic Licenses for St. Joseph Catholic Parish (10-11-2019 and 11-08-2019).

10. N E W B USIN E SS -RE SO L UTIO N S
NBR-1…Approve 2019-2020 Pierce Park Pavilion lease with South Central Cyclones Hockey Club and waiving
rent payments.

NBR-2…Approve 2020 Parks and Recreation Seasonal Wage Rates.

NBR-3…Approve acceptance of $25,000 from the Don Pierce family in exchange for the naming of field #5 at
Pierce Park “Don Pierce Field.”

NBR-4…Award a contract for taxi services to Abbey Vans effective January 1, 2020.

NBR-5…Approve a contract with Waste Management of Wisconsin, Inc., for disposal of residential refuse and
recyclables. 1



2

NBR-6… Approve petition for Public Street and Utility Improvements on the unimproved Canepa Street right
of-way for a future subdivision at the west end of Canepa Street owned by Jaren & Rhonda Parchem.

11. N E W B USIN E SS –O RD IN A N C E S
NBO-1…Approve the PUD (Planned Unit Development) for Karla and Josh Reinhardt to convert property
formerly D&S Dental Lab to a Family Day Care Center located at 1208 9th Street.

NBO-2…Approve creating Ordinance §7.09(20)(a)(1) relating to a parking restriction in the Municipal Parking
Lot located on the southeast corner of 5th Avenue and Birch Street.

NBO-3…Approve revising Ordinance §7.02(2)(b)2 to provide for no parking any time on the north side of 9th

Avenue between Oak Street and Birch Street.

NBO-4…Consider adopting an ordinance requiring gun shops to have a video surveillance system.

12. A D M IN ISTRA TO R A N D C O UN C IL CO M M E N TS (Comments are limited to recognition of City residents and
employees, memorials, and non-political community events. Discussion of matters related to governmental business is prohibited.)

13. RE P O RTS,P E TITIO N S,A N D C O RRE SP O N D E N C E - The City acknowledges receipt and distribution
of the following:

 Reports:August, 2019 – Treasurer & Building Inspection

 M inutesfrom theFollowingM eetings:
C opiesof thesemeetingminutesareincludedin yourpacket:
Finance/Personnel 9-10-19 Ambulance 7-24-19
UW Campus 8-15-19 Administrative 9-5-19

C opiesof thesemeetingminutesareon filein theC lerk'soffice:
PFC 8-19-19, 8-23-19 CDA 8-27-19
Library 8-14-19, 8-20-19 Public Arts 8-22-19

 P etitionsand C orrespondence B eing Referred: Letter from citizen regarding Council Meeting of
September 10, 2019.

14. A D JO URN M E N T (Voice Vote)
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

For more information about the City of Baraboo, visit our website at www.cityofbaraboo.com

S eptember2019

S u nday M onday Tu esday W ednesday Thu rsday Friday S atu rday
22 23 24 25 26 27 28

Finance

C ou ncil

A mbu lance

29 30
P u blic S afety

1 2 3 4 5

2



3

O ctober2019

S u nday M onday Tu esday W ednesday Thu rsday Friday S atu rday
29 30 1 2 3 4 5

C D A B E D C

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
A dministrative Finance

C ou ncil

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
P ark& Recreation P lan

L ibrary

B ID UW C ampu s

20 21 22 23 24 25 26
S C D C

P FC

Finance

C ou ncil

E mergencyM gt.

P u blic A rts

27 28 29 30 31 1 2
P u blic S afety A mbu lance H alloween

D ataprovid ed 'as is'
withou twarranty

P L E A SE TA KE N O TIC E - Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with
Disabilities Act who requires the meeting or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format should
contact the City Clerk at 101 South Blvd., Baraboo, WI or phone (608) 355-2700 during regular business hours at
least 48 hours before the meeting so reasonable arrangements can be made to accommodate each request.

Agenda jointly prepared by D. Munz and B. Zeman Agenda posted on 09/20/2019

3



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #399

Council Chambers, Municipal Building, Baraboo, Wisconsin
Tuesday, September 10, 2019 – 7:00 p.m.

Mayor Palm called the regular meeting of Council to order.
Roll call was taken.
Council Members Present: Wedekind, Kolb, Plautz, Sloan, Petty, Ellington, Alt, Kierzek, Thurow
Council Members Absent:
Others Present: Chief Schauf, Clerk Zeman, Adm. Geick, Atty. Truman, W. Peterson, C. Haggard,
K. Stieve, P. Cannon, M. Hardy, J. Bergin, T. Pinion, members of the press and others.

The Pledge of Allegiance was given.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Ellington and carried to approve the minutes of August 27, 2019.

Moved by Alt, seconded by Ellington and carried to approve the agenda.

Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted.

PRESENTATIONS (None Scheduled)

PUBLIC HEARINGS (None Scheduled)

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Moved by Kolb, seconded by Ellington to convene as a Committee of the Whole to discuss the
following:

 Finance Director C. Haggard presented the financial projections as it relates to future
building projects.

Dawn Gunderson noted that a rating agency will look at our General Obligation, the
percentage of debt to our operations; they will also look at the direct General Obligation to
the levy.

Ald. Plautz noted that he has talked with a few people who were thinking about buying a
home in Baraboo and they feel the taxes are already high now. One of our goals was for
affordable housing; we need to keep this in mind.

Ald. Sloan questioned Chief Stieve on the added maintenance and operating costs of the new
fire station. While Chief Stieve does not have these numbers available, he does note that the
new fire station will be larger and have more efficient equipment.

Ald. Sloan also question what percentage of the new fire station building will be funded by
the fire district that is outside of the City? Chief Stieve explained that when the contract for
fire protection service was negotiated, it was included that the new building will be fully
funded by the City of Baraboo.

 The City Council discussed the financial strategies and options

Adm. Geick noted that our debt capacity is limited and needs to be managed properly. The
City’s general best interest will be better served by maintaining a good bond rating. Both the
Library and Fire/EMS projects are valuable to the community; both provide needed services
to the citizens. The Baraboo District Ambulance Service financial problems will take more
than this budget year to determine solutions; there are too many unknowns at the moment.
Completion of both the Fire/EMS and Library projects at the same time will place a large
financial burden on the community. 4



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #400

Mayor Palm noted the following financial strategies:
o Authorize the City Staff and CDA to contact USDA and place their loan applications

for both projects. The City’s application for these two projects would be good for 5
years and it locks the current interest rate.

o Authorize staff to develop a vehicle registration fee of $20 per vehicle to generate
approximately $250,000 a year for the use of street maintenance and transportation
related expenses only.

o Authorize staff to develop a street light utility for the purpose of paying expenses
relating to lighting which includes maintenance and street light replacement. Street
lighting has an estimated annual cost of $150,000.

o Another thing we can do is change the policy on street improvement debt; instead of
using GO debt that we bond for, we would use the State Trust Fund. This would
eliminate the amount of money that we have to borrow in order to cover the cost of the
bond issue.

o Authorize staff to work on a plan to close TID 6 early. This would allow us to
capture that $41M earlier which will help our equalized value.

o Move forward with the Reevaluation of property in the City.

Mayor Palm noted the following building strategies:
o Authorize the Library building project for 2021
o Request the Library Board to do additional fundraising for their project of $2M in

addition to what is already available in their building trust fund.
o Delay the Fire/EMS construction until financial and management issues at BDAS are

resolved so there is a full understanding of the financial impact to the City.
o We can proceed with the Fire/EMS building site selection study and preliminary

design cost at approx. $725,000 but delay the final construction of the building until we
are ready to move forward with that.

o Add funding to the fiscal 2020 budget to complete necessary building repairs to the
current Fire Station.

Ald. Kolb requested authorizing staff to look at what would be necessary in order to move
forward a premier resort tax.

Ald. Plautz requested additional information on the repairs that will have to be done to the
old Fire Station and the costs.

Ald. Sloan questioned the current Fire Station repairs and if they would bring ADA into
effect. Chief Stieve noted that there are ADA concerns and he feels they must still comply.
Included in the building repairs are the A/C units, which was damaged during a hail storm.
Chief Stieve also noted that Police, Fire, EMS, and Public Works are all included in the
essential services. As long as we kick the can down the road, this is not going to get any
cheaper. The City of Baraboo needs adequate facilities for the essential services; Fire and
EMS are way behind. He also noted that there are 3 or 4 fire fighters with cancer; fire
fighters are at a higher level to get cancer. The 2007 Public Safety Building Study stated
“remodeling is not a cost effective option….building and the mechanicals are aged and
inefficient”. 2017 Fire Department Operations Study noted “Weakness, inadequate facility;
threat, current facility”. The Fire Dept. is at a crossroads within the City of Baraboo. The
Fire Department Operations Study brought a lot of issues to the forefront. One of the goals
from the 2018 goal setting was a Fire/EMS Station; it was one of the top priorities. Atty.
Truman requested that Chief Stieve keep his comments to financial strategies and options.

Ald. Sloan noted that there is no chance we are building both projects next year, we need to
prioritize. Any discussion we have about why one building is more important or more
needed than the other, sooner than the other is pertinent; it’s exactly what we are discussing.
We are talking about a state mandated service that we have to provide, Fire, EMS, vs
something we would like, the library.

5



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #401

J. Bergin addressed the Council to note a few things: Library services are also to some degree
mandated by State Statues, to keep the library functioning for the next 5+ years will cost over
$400,000 in additional costs, and the Library is also not ADA compliant.

Ald. Ellington stated that because the ambulance service is not anywhere near ready to go
anywhere, the fire station is also not ready.

Ald. Kolb noted that until August of 2018, the Fire Station was scheduled for 2028. It wasn’t
moved up on the list until 2018. He doesn’t feel that a new building will speed up response
time or save more lives and when we look at public safety, these are the things that he thinks
about.

Ald. Sloan disagreed; he feels that with the way the trucks and ambulances are currently
parked, a new building would definitely speed up the response time.

Ald. Petty noted that as a reality, we are not reasonably able to finance both projects at the
same time. It is the Council’s responsibility to make a determination as to what is
prioritized. He doesn’t see us funding both projects at the same time and having any sense of
reasonable fiscal responsibility to the tax payers, the community as well as our debt service.

Ald. Kolb noted that what we need is revenues.

Ald. Plautz would like to see the issues at the ambulance dealt with first before we go ahead
with a building plan.

Moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to reconvene into regular session.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Kolb to authorize City and CDA staff to submit loan
applications to the USDA for the Library Expansion project and the Fire/EMS Station project.
Motion carried, 8-Ayes; 1-Nay, Sloan

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Ellington to authorize city staff to develop a framework
for the creation of a Vehicle Registration Fee and a Street Light Utility for future approval by the
Council. Motion carried unanimously.

Moved by Kolb, seconded by Ellington to authorize city staff to explore the creation of
premier resort tax for future approval by the Council. Motion carried, 8-ayes; 1-Nay, Sloan

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Alt to authorize city staff to develop a procedure for a
citywide revaluation in 2020 and 2021 and to work with Ehlers the requirements for the closure of
TID 6 for future approval by the Council. Motion carried unanimously.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Ellington to revise the Capital Plan to construct the
Library addition in 2021 with the Library raising $2 million in additional funding and the City
borrowing $6 million. Motion carried unanimously.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Ellington to delay the construction of the Fire/EMS
Station and authorize needed repairs to the existing fire station when proposals or estimates are
available. Motion carried, 8-Ayes; 1-Nay, Sloan

PUBLIC INVITED TO SPEAK
Chris Olson, E9991 Buckhorn Rd, Reedsburg is in favor of the library expansion. The poverty rate
of the City, and entire County continues to grow. He sees on a daily basis more and more young
students coming to school with increased language, social, and emotional needs. The expansion of
the library will help to maintain, and in most cases increase the amount of literacy, communication,

6



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #402

and learning resources available to all of our families. These necessary resources and support for our
community members will lead to more engaged families and will increase the learning and school
readiness skills for all our students.

Abigail, confidential address is in favor of the library expansion. She feels it is very important to
expand the library because of the space restrictions. She also feels the library creates a safe
environment where every age group can go, have fun, and learn. It would be nice to be able to do
more home schooling classes at the library; they were restricted in what they could do because of
space restrictions at the library. She goes to the library to interact with other kids, develop social
skills and be herself.

Rob Nelson, 318 Remington Street, Baraboo is in favor of the library expansion. He appreciates the
hard work by all City staff and especially the leadership and creativity by Adm. Geick and the Mayor
and staff in trying to come up with a creative way through the economic and development situation
we are facing tonight.

Doug Mering, 1605 Keith Street, Baraboo is interested in the Fire Dept/EMS Bldg. The August
2017 Fire Station study by RW Management Group noted that before we proceed with this building
project, “a long range comprehensive plan should be developed for the fire department. This plan
should be consistent with the short and long term goals of the City Council…A strategic plan can be
developed using committee members, department members and administration of the governing
body. Contributions from these groups and stakeholders through the strengths, weakness,
opportunities, and threats process should be utilized to develop a strategic plan”. Involvement of
both the Fire and EMS groups in a strategic plan should be important and appropriate. Positive
reasons for a strategic plan includes: provides a sense of direction, outlines measurable goals, and is
a tool that is useful for guiding day-to-day decisions, as well as evaluating progress and changing
approaches when moving forward. It will add transparency and accountability to the City. In order
to make the most of strategic planning, the fire, ambulance and City government should give careful
thought to the strategic of objectives and outlines and backup those goals with realistically and
thoroughly researched quantifiable bench marks for evaluating the results.

Pamela Roland, 875 Iroquois Circle, Baraboo is in favor of the library expansion. The library
currently serves 3,000 patrons a week, does not meet the Wisconsin Public Library Standards as
established by the Dept. of Public Instruction, and is not ADA compliant. The Library has already
put over $700,000 into this project and has purchased land needed for the project. This project is
ready to go and has received public support.

Arie Smouter, 3174 Red Pine Rd, Baraboo is in favor of the library expansion. Libraries are a place
to practice and learn civility; they are an open and safe place where different parties can meet. A
concern for him is the difference between the wealthy and the poor. He sees a lot of services that
many don’t have access to; Libraries are a good place to level the playing field for applying for new
jobs, learning new skills, etc.

Lacey Steffes, E11144A Moon Rd, Baraboo is in favor of the library expansion but did not speak.

Trent Capaul, 104 13th Street, Baraboo is in favor of banning bikes at the skatepark. In response to
Ald. Plautz’s suggestion to split the park by days between skaters and bikers, he would like the
Council to consider that not only are they already restricted by weather, Ald. Plautz is asking them to
give up another 3 months to a group that has not helped fundraise. This is going to be a travel
destination for Wisconsin skateboarders and we can’t expect them to check a schedule prior to
visiting the area. The ownership that the skateboarders now have at the skate park is due to the time
and dedication they have spent fundraising over the past year; They have quickly found the interest
from the community for this skate park.

Gretchen Viney, 117 11th Avenue, Baraboo is in favor of the library expansion. The Baraboo Public
Library is so much more than the sum of its parts; you can’t put a value of a library on a scale. The
library needs a place to grow.
Keri Olson, 1720 Elizabeth St. #4, Baraboo is in favor of the library expansion. The need for the

7



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #403

expansion and renovation of the Baraboo Public Library is a matter of public safety. For example,
the lower level program room is used regularly and is often filled with children; There is only one
exit from this room and the hallway leading from this room is narrow. Secondly, the elevator is not
current with regulations. Third, the building is ADA non-compliant; public restrooms are not
wheelchair accessible, there is no street level access. Fourth, security is an issue because staff cannot
see who comes in and out of the alley side entrance. Fifth, safety issues have affected the library
budget; upper and lower level staff cannot see or hear each other resulting in more staff being needed
so as no one is left alone. Finally, staff work spaces are crowded and unsafe. The library is ready to
proceed with the expansion project. In order to properly serve the community, the library must be
able to address the major public safety issues with which it has been dealing for years. In the newly
expanded facility, these safety issues will be addressed.

Anna Krause, 104 Lieder Street, North Freedom is in favor of the library expansion. Equity is
defined as the quality of being fair and impartial. The library has the power to level the playing field
between ignorance and intelligence. A library is truly the great equalizer; it creates equity by giving
access to the internet to citizens who could otherwise not afford it, it offers free children’s
programming to young parents, it gives our immigrant citizens a place to go and find assistance with
learning to speak and read English, it offers concerts, book readings, and many other types of free
programming and services. We should care about equity because society is founded on the idea of
fairness and equity. Our school district has made a commitment to equity, to fairness, integrity, and
decency. Now it’s time for our community to show our children and our citizens that we also value
equity and support the library as a great equalizer.

Victoria Sanchez, 305 Lynn Ave #B210, Baraboo is in favor of the library expansion. The library
expansion is for a very positive environment. The programs offered are positive outlets for children.
For the Senior Citizens, the ability to be able to use the computers and internet for no charge is very
important. All of the programs offered at the library need more space.

Kilton Holmes, 126 1st Street, #3, Baraboo is in favor of the library expansion. We are dealing with
an age of new technology. We need to consider that libraries are staying up to date with technology
and this is one area we need to be helping develop.

MAYOR’S BUSINESS
 The Mayor congratulated Joan Wheeler for her 5th anniversary with the Baraboo Public

Library.

CONSENT AGENDA
Resolution No. 19-75

THAT the Accounts Payable, in the amount of $ 991,197.64 as recommended for payment by the
Finance/Personnel Committee, be allowed and ordered paid.

Resolution No. 19-76
THAT the City Clerk be authorized to issue the following Liquor Licenses:

 Bella Vita Café, LLC

Resolution No. 19-77
THAT the City Clerk be authorized to deny the following Liquor Licenses:

 Red Shed Garden & Gifts

Resolution No. 19-78
THAT the City Clerk be authorized to issue the following Operator’s Licenses: 8



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #404

 Autumn Morittz, Quindt’s Towne Lounge (New)
 Chelsey Riley, Baraboo Burger Company (New)
 Paul Fuller, Barabrew Liquor (New)
 William Moorman, Rogues & Ruffians Renaissance Faire (Temp)
 John Bak, Rogues & Ruffians Renaissance Faire (Temp)
 Ousia Whitaker-Devault, Rogues & Ruffians Renaissance Faire (Temp)
 Joseph Baird, Rogues & Ruffians Renaissance Faire (Temp)

Resolution No. 19-79
THAT the City Clerk be authorized to deny the following Operator’s Licenses:

 Michelle Glaser, Red Shed Garden & Gifts

Resolution No. 19-80
THAT Trick or Treat hours be set on Thursday, October 31, 2019 between the hours of 4

p.m. to 7 p.m. in the City of Baraboo.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Kolb and carried that the Consent Agenda be approved-9
ayes.

ORDINANCES ON 2ND READING
Moved by Sloan, seconded by Petty and carried unanimously to approve the 2nd reading of
Ordinance No. 2529 Amending §19.13 of the Baraboo Municipal Code to prevent bikes at the Skate
Park located at Campbell Park.

NEW BUSINESS - RESOLUTIONS
Resolution No. 19-81

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposal (RFP) seeking Design Services for a new Fire and EMS
Building was issued on May 24, 2019;

AND WHEREAS, eight Proposals were submitted prior to the July 3rd deadline;

AND WHEREAS, an eight-member Selection Committee independently reviewed the eight
Proposals and met on July 12th to collectively review them and developed a shortlist of the top five
Proposals and invited the five firms to be interviewed;

AND WHEREAS, the Selection Committee interviewed the top five firms on July 26th and
recommended the team of MSA Professional Services & CR Architecture + Design (CR Architecture
+ Design being a sub-contractor to MSA Professional Services) be selected to negotiate a contract
for the Planning and Design Services for a new Fire & EMS Building;

AND WHEREAS, preliminary negotiations have taken place between staff and MSA
Professional Services, and the City Administrator is now requesting authority to enter into additional
negotiations for the purpose of reaching an agreement between the City and MSA Professional
Services for an agreed upon contract price of no more than $725,000, not inclusive of reimbursables,
for the purpose of (i) Site Selection and (ii) a Preliminary Design of a new Fire & EMS building.

9



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #405

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Administrator is authorized to
enter into additional negotiations with MSA Professional Services for the above stated reasons and
with a contract price of no more than $725,000, not inclusive of reimbursables, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if the City Administrator is successful in negotiations,
the Council hereby authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to execute an agreement on behalf of the
City with MSA Professional Services, subject to the City Attorney’s review of the agreement as to
form.

Moved by Ellington, seconded by Alt and carried that Resolution No. 19-81 be approved-8
ayes; 1 Nay, Kolb

Resolution No. 19-82
THAT the 2020 Recommended Park and Recreation Program Fees be approved as presented

for consideration by the Parks and Recreation Commission.

Moved by Sloan, seconded by Petty and carried that Resolution No. 19-82 be approved-9
ayes.

Resolution No. 19-83
THAT the 2020 Boys and Girls Club lease for use of Civic Center rooms 20, 26, 27, 29, the

auditorium and kitchen (shared) be approved at $711.52 per month

Moved by Sloan, seconded by Wedekind and carried that Resolution No. 19-83 be approved-
9 ayes.

Resolution No. 19-84
THAT the 2020 Baraboo Senior Center lease for use of Civic Center rooms 21, 24 and kitchen

(shared) be approved at $165.45 per month

Moved by Petty, seconded by Kolb and carried that Resolution No. 19-84 be approved-9
ayes.

Resolution No. 19-85
THAT the Compliance Maintenance Annual Report for the Wastewater Plant for 2018 is hereby

approved.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Kolb and carried that Resolution No. 19-85 be approved-
9 ayes.

Resolution No. 19-86
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Baraboo

Authorize the police department to purchase a used 2015 Chevy Equinox for $15,000 from Don
Larson Chevrolet and utilize the remaining $2,000 to purchase equipment to be installed to turn it
into a police vehicle.

Moved by Kolb, seconded by Petty and carried that Resolution No. 19-86 be approved-9
ayes.

Resolution No. 19-87
Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

10



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #406

That the City of Baraboo Finance Director is hereby authorized to purchase the 2020 Chrysler
Pacifica 8 passenger minivan vehicle from Ewald Motors of Oconomowoc in the amount of
$31,000 with a local share of $6,200.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Petty and carried that Resolution No. 19-87 be approved-
9 ayes.

Resolution No. 19-88
RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF

APPROXIMATELY $1,255,000 TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING
BONDS

WHEREAS, the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin (the "City") is presently in
need of approximately $1,255,000 for the public purpose of refunding the 2020 through 2030
maturities of the Taxable General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, dated December 27,
2010 (the "Refunded Obligations"); and

WHEREAS, the Common Council deems it to be necessary, desirable and in the best
interest of the City to borrow said funds through the issuance of taxable general obligation
refunding bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that:

Section 1. Issuance of the Bonds. The City shall issue its Taxable General
Obligation Refunding Bonds in an approximate amount of $1,255,000 (the "Bonds") for
the purpose above specified.

Section 2. Sale of Bonds. The Common Council hereby authorizes and directs that the
Bonds be offered for public sale. At a subsequent meeting, the Common Council shall consider
such bids for the Bonds as may have been received and take action thereon.

Section 3. Notice of Sale. The City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers & Associates,
Inc. ("Ehlers")) be and hereby is directed to cause notice of the sale of the Bonds to be
disseminated in such manner and at such times as the City Clerk may determine and to cause
copies of a complete Notice of Sale and other pertinent data to be forwarded to interested
bidders as the City Clerk may determine.

Section 4. Official Statement. The City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers) shall cause an
Official Statement to be prepared and distributed. The appropriate City officials shall determine
when the Official Statement is final for purposes of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule
15c2-12 and shall certify said Official Statement, such certification to constitute full
authorization of such Official Statement under this resolution.

Adopted, approved and recorded September 10, 2019.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Sloan and carried that Resolution No. 19-88 be approved-
9 ayes.

ADMINISTRATOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS – None.

11



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #407

REPORTS, PETITIONS, AND CORRESPONDENCE
The City officially acknowledges receipt and distribution of the following:

 Reports: August, 2019 – Fire Dept.

 Minutes from the Following Meetings:

Finance/Personnel Committee – Dennis Thurow Committee Room, #205 August 27, 2019
Members Present: Petty, Thurow, Sloan
Absent:
Others Present: Mayor Palm, Adm. Geick, E. Truman, B. Zeman, C. Haggard, K. Stieve, J. Bergin, T. Pinion, Ald. Ellington,
Andrea Jansen, Dawn Gunderson, Pat Cannon, Rob Nelson

Call to Order –Ald. Petty called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. noting compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Moved by
Sloan, seconded by Thurow to approve the minutes of August 13, 2019 and carried unanimously. Moved by Sloan, seconded by
Thurow to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable – Moved by Sloan seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council for approval of the accounts

payable for $454,940.12. Motion carried unanimously.
b) Approve Preliminary FY 2020 Budget Estimates, Report, 2 Year Budget Forecast

C. Haggard presented the 2020 budget estimates. Based on the preliminary assumptions, the levy is an increase over
prior year of approximately $300,000 or a 3.5% increase. The mill rate is projected to be an increase over prior year at
11.35, last year was 11.08 which is a 2.4% increase. The proposed new debt includes $750,000 for streets, $600,000
for Fire & EMS bldg. design, and $40,000 for Civic Center office renovation.
Dawn Gunderson from Ehlers presented the Committee with considerations regarding the budget and debt. In terms of
a General Obligation basis, we are well within our City imposed debt capacity to include both the Fire & EMS bldg.
and the Library; however, to take this one-step beyond, Dawn considered how this would look in the terms of the levy.
Taking into consideration the existing debt along with the proposed debt for the Fire & EMS bldg. and the Library, we

are looking at a levy increase of approximately $1M from where the levy is now. The significance of this is the change
in the tax rate per $1,000 will increase substantially and it’s another almost 1/3 of the levy increase in terms of our debt
service levy. While we look at our ability to borrow on a GO basis, we are still utilizing our levy to pay for this debt
service. The rating agencies, while they would look at the GO debt in terms of our borrowing capacity, they will also
look at the impact on our taxpayers to support this debt. Rating agencies will look at what our debt service is as a
percentage of our operating expenditures; currently we are at about 10% -12%, adding this on would take us up to
about 17%. Because we are already higher than the median of 8.4%, this is one indicator that will put some pressure
on our rating by increasing our tax debt service payment to our residents by as much as $1M. Ald. Sloan questions
doubling the median and how we could consciously do this to our taxpayers. With a drop in our Moody’s rating, our
interest rate could potentially increase. This item is information only, no action taken.

c) Approve Request for Additional Funding from the State of WI for Road Repairs and Improvements
Atty. Truman noted that the County Board of Supervisors is looking for us to support the request of additional funding
for road repairs. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council. Motion carried unanimously.

d) Approve Exemption from County Library tax for 2020 Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to
Council for action. Motion carried unanimously.

e) Approve 2018 Audit Report Andrea Jansen from Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP presented the 2018 Financial
Statements. She explained that the new implementation of GASB 75, which includes both Health and Life insurance,
reports that it is costing us more for health insurance because we offer insurance to retirees. Because we participate in
the State’s plan, we don’t have the option to take this benefit away from our retirees. Another change, as of 1/1/2018
the Airport operations are now reported on separate financial statements. She also noted that there were no material
audit adjustments; this is very commendable, nice job done by City staff. Overall, it was a very stable year, Moved by
Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council. Motion carried unanimously.

f) Approve the City as a continuing member of CVMIC (Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company) for the
policy years of 2020, 2021, and 2022 Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council. Motion
carried unanimously.

Informational Items
 City Attorney’s report on insurance claims – None.
 Report from Ehlers – Included in item “b” above.
 Review & Discussion of RFP’s for Agenda & Minutes Management Software – Postponed to next meeting.

Adjournment – Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried to adjourn at 6:56pm.

12



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #408

Minutes of Plan Commission Meeting August 20, 2019
Call to Order – Phil Wedekind called the meeting of the Commission to order at 5:15 PM.

Roll Call – Present were Phil Wedekind, Dennis Thurow, Roy Franzen, Jim O’Neill, and Tom Kolb. Pat Liston and Dee Marshall
were absent.

Also in attendance were Tom Pinion, Ed Geick, Emily Truman, Oleg Boukhankov, Anna Pulling, Karla & Josh Reinhardt, Ben
Oestrich, Tom Greve, Dave Parchem, Jamie Phephles,

Call to Order
a. Note compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Wedekind noted compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
b. Agenda Approval: It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Franzen to approve the agenda as posted. Motion

carried unanimously.
c. Minutes Approval: It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Franzen to approve the minutes of the July 16, 2019

meeting. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Invited to Speak (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for Commission action if
recognized by the presiding officer.) –There were no speakers.

Public Hearings:
a. Public Hearing to consider a request of Dennis Hahn, d/b/a Good Karma Ltd. For a Conditional Use Permit to convert the

existing two-unit condominium to two side-by-side single-family residential dwellings in an R-1A Single-Family Residential
zoning district, located at 511/513 10th Avenue, City of Baraboo, Wisconsin - There being no speakers, the hearing was declared
closed.

b. Public Hearing to consider a request by St. John’s Lutheran Church for a Conditional Use Permit for an electronic variable
message sign t St. John’s Lutheran School at 515 5th Street, in an R-1A Single-Family Residential zoning district, City of
Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin – There being no speakers, the hearing was declared closed.

New Business

a. Request for Conditional Use Permit to convert the existing two-unit condominium at 511/513 10th Avenue to two-side-by-
side single-family attached residential dwellings in an R-1A Single-Family Residential zoning district, by Good Karma Ltd. –
Tom Greve, Grothman Associates introduced himself to the Commission. Pinion presented the background for this request. He
said that this is the third and final condominium conversion. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Franzen to approve the
conditional use request as presented. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – Wedekind, Thurow, Franzen, O’Neill, and Kolb.
Nay – 0, motion carried 5-0.

b. Review and approve a two lot Certified Survey Map for side-by-side single-family attached residential dwellings at 511/513
10th Avenue, in a R-1A Single-Family Residential zoning district, by Good Karma Ltd. – Pinion presented the CSM to the
Commission. It was moved by Franzen, seconded by O’Neill to approve the CSM as presented. On roll call vote for the motion,
Ayes – Thurow, Franzen, O’Neill, Kolb, and Wedekind. Nay – 0, motion carried 5 – 0.

c. Request for Conditional Use Permit for an Electric Variable Message Sign at St. Joh’s Lutheran School at 515 5th Street, in
an R-1A Single-Family Residential zoning district, by St. John’s Lutheran Church – David Parchem, representing St. John’s
introduced himself to the Commission. Pinion presented the background regarding the request to the Commission. Kolb stated
that the variable message sign approved for the Church of Nazarene had conditions such that it had to be off by 10:00 p.m., 30
seconds between messages, and no graphics. He felt that this request should follow the same conditions. The amount of
illumination was questioned. Bill Rupp of LaCrosse Signs introduced himself to the Commission and gave details of the existing
sign illumination. Rupp then gave details of the requested sign and how it could be programmed. Franzen questioned the size of
the proposed sign. David Parchem said that this sign is the second design and is smaller than the first. He said that he feels that it
fits the area well given the size of the building and less intrusion than on the corner of 5th and Elizabeth. Franzen said that
making the sign a little shorter and due to the limited parking in front of the school, he feels that the sign would still be very
visible. Parchem said that the proximity of the sign and the knoll in the road gives the sign very good visibility from both
intersections as approaching from a distance. He said he would like to keep the sign the size that is being proposed if possible. It
was stated that the proposed sign is within the parameters of the code. O’Neill agrees that sign seems too big and would like to
see something less intrusive. Kolb moved to allow the variable message sign, providing that it is not on before 5:30 a.m., off by
10:00 p.m., there is at least 30 seconds between message change, and no graphics. Thurow seconded the motion. On roll call vote
for the motion, Ayes – Kolb, Wedekind, and Thurow. Nay – Franzen, and O’Neill, motion carried 3-2.

d. Request to Rezone Lots 5 & 6, Block 1, Peck’s Addition to the City of Baraboo, located at 302 8th Street on the southeast
corner of 8th and East Streets, from NRO-Neighborhood Residential/Office to B-2 Neighborhood Business or B-3 highway
Oriented Business to allow the property to be used for the sale of automobiles by Oleg Boukhankov, d/b/a Absolute Auto Repair
and Sales, LLC – Anna Pulling, Absolute Auto introduced herself to the Commission. Pinion said that this property is currently
The Red Shed and Wild Apples. The property is currently zoned NRO, Neighborhood Residential Office, with limited permitted
and conditional uses, and neither of those listed contain automobile sales as a permitted or a conditional use. He said that the
applicants have an acceptable offer to purchase contingent upon zoning. The applicants are here to request it to be rezoned to a
zoning classification that will allow the sale of automobiles. O’Neill said he would not want an automobile business in a central
residential district, he feels it would be incompatible. Franzen agrees with O’Neill. Kolb also agrees, he doesn’t feels that B-2 or
B-3 would be compatible in this area. Pulling asked if it were possible to change the zoning with conditions. Kolb said that he13



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #409

would be opposed no matter what. Pulling asked for specific concerns. O’Neill said that he wants to preserve the residential
character of the neighborhood and not turn it into commercial district. Pulling felt that there is a business know. O’Neill said that
the business has been there for years and he does not want to see another one. Pinion said that the existing business is a legal
non-conforming, and still exists because it was grandfathered in. Pulling feels that it is unfair to the owners that want to sell the
property. O’Neill said that someone to build a residential home on the site. Franzen said that he would be opposed to any
business, unless an owner-occupied office, such as insurance. Pulling asked if she lived there, could she sell cars. Franzen said
that it states office; therefore, it would not be allowed. Wedekind would not be interested in anything other than residential.
Pulling said that this intersection is very busy for residential, and is the reason she feels a business would be a good fit, with only
approximately 15 cars on the lot and they would make it look nice. Franzen said that it is not always the first person that comes
onto a property, but people that come after. Jamie Phephles, ReMax, listing agent for the owner said he respects the
Commission’s decision if they don’t want to make for this particular purpose; however, the owner of the property, as you know,
gives her very limited possibility to sell this property. He said no one is going to purchase this property and keep it as a floral
shop. Even a car lot that will be nice and appealing would be much improved upon what is currently there. Kolb did not agree.
Phephles questioned is the owner could apply for some type of zoning other than what is currently is zoned at now that would
allow the use of another potential business. Attorney Truman said that this is outside of the scope of what is being discussed
today and she suggested that if Phephles had questions about things that are not on the agenda he could come in a speak with the
Zoning Administrator. It was moved by Kolb to deny the proposed zoning change and forward a negative recommendation to
Council. The requests dies for lack of second.

e. Consideration of a Request by Karla and Josh Reinhardt, LC to review a combined GDP/SIP in accordance with Steps 3 &
4 of the Planned Development process to convert the existing office building, located at 1208 9th Street in a B-3 Highway
Oriented Business zoning district, to a Family Day Care Center – Karla Reinhardt introduced herself to the Commission. Pinion
said that the Reinhardt’s’ currently operate a family daycare center on 3rd Avenue and they are looking for a place to continue the
business away from their home. He said that this property is the former home of D&S Dental and has been vacant for 4 or 5
years. He said the Reinhardt’s have purchased the property and the State’s Licensing Agent look at the building, the property
meets the minimum requirements for a family daycare center. Ms. Reinhardt presented her background in the daycare business to
the Commission. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by O’Neill to approve a combined GDP/SIP in accordance with Steps 3 & 4
of the Planned Development process to convert the existing office building located at 1208 9th Street in a B-3 Highway Oriented
Business zoning district to a Family Day Care Center as requested. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – O’Neill, Kolb,
Wedekind, Thurow, and Franzen. Nay – 0. Motion carried 5-0.

Adjournment - It was moved by O’Neill, seconded by Kolb to adjourn at 5:49 p.m. The motion carried unanimously.

Minutes of the Public Safety Committee Meeting August 23, 2019
Members Present: Phil Wedekind and Tom Kolb, and Mike Plautz. Others Present: Tom Pinion, Administrator Geick, Police
Chief Mark Schauf, Fire Chief Kevin Stieve, Attorney Emily Truman, Tony Gilman, Megan Krautkramer, Mark Willer, Nicki
Green, Mike Johnson, and Jaren & Rhonda Parchem.

Call to Order - Committee Chairman Phil Wedekind called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. at Baraboo City
Service Center. Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to approve the agenda
as posted. Motion carried unanimously. It was moved by Plautz, seconded by Kolb to approve the minutes of the July 29, 2019
meeting. Motion carried unanimously.

New Business
a. Consider revising Section 7.09(20) to change the 2-hr time limit to a 4-hr time limit for the Municipal Parking Lot on

the southeast corner of Birch Street and 5th Avenue (behind the Baraboo Library) – Pinion said there was no signage on this
parking lot, in the ordinance the lot is listed as a 2-hour parking limit. When signage was installed, complaints arose and the
Library Director requested that the time limit be increased to 4 hours. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to increase
the parking lot time limit to 4 hours. Motion carried unanimously.

b. Consider revising the Official Traffic Map to prohibit parking on the north side of 9th Avenue between Oak Street and
Birch Street – Tony Gilman said that this is an arear is that narrower than most streets. He said there are no driveways on the
north side of the street. He said that he would like to limit parking to south side only to benefit of our services and residents
along here. It was moved by Plautz, seconded by Kolb to revise the official traffic map to prohibit parking on the north side
of 9th Avenue between Oak Street and Birch Street. Motion carried unanimously.

c. Review and recommendation to close Oak Street between 3rd & 4th Avenues and 4th Avenue between Oak Street and
Broadway for two Special Events – “Night Markets”, on September 20th and December 20th from 5PM to 9PM, sponsored
by Baraboo Young Professionals – Nicki Green asked if this could be amended to be just Oak Street between 3rd and 4th for
the December 20th event. Pinion said that when special events are a carbon copy of previous years they do not come back to
Committee; however, because they are requesting to add a block, it needs Committee approval. It was moved by Kolb,
seconded by Plautz to recommend the street closures as presented and amended for September 20 and December 20. Motion
carried unanimously.

d. Consider Petition for Public Street and Utility Improvements on the unimproved Canepa Street right-of-way for a
future subdivision at the west end of Canepa Street by Jaren & Rhonda Parchem – Pinion presented the request to the
Committee. He said this is an unimproved right-of-way with an apparent private gravel driveway in the right-of-way. He
said the Parchems recently purchased the 6.12-acre parcel next to them and would like to subdivide it into up to six
buildable lots. He said that when this occurs, the property owners have one of two options to make it developable. Since this
is an existing public right-of-way and in the absence of public utilities and public improvements they can petition the City
for those public improvements. He said the City can then decide whether they want to do this, if they choose to, it would be14



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #410

a special assessment project where the City commissions the work and then assesses all the adjoining benefitting properties
for their proportionate share of the cost. He said at the end of the day, the City does not have any contribution to it, it goes
to the debt service initially, we charge interest to cover the bonding rate, etc. and the City has made whole at the end of the
day. Pinion said that Option 2, which is seen more conventionally is where the developer enters into a development
agreement with the City, requires the developer to install a host of required improvements. He said that this one is unique. In
most cases the developer owns 100% of the land to be improvement; however, in this case, there is some improved land
adjoining that first 250’ stretch, so if they were to finance it, they would be looking for the City to play middle man and
assess the benefitting costs to the private property owners on the north side of the street and then reimburse them for the
costs that they wouldn’t already have. He said the Parchems have submitted a petition to the City requesting the City to
make the public improvements and then assess the benefitting property owners accordingly. Plautz questioned approximate
cost, Pinion estimated $160,000. Kolb expressed concern raising the debt capacity. Pinion said regardless of the funding
source it will county against the debt capacity. Plautz moved to recommend consideration of petition for public street and
utility improvements on the unimproved Canepa Street right-of-way for a future subdivision at the west end of Canepa
Street. Kolb seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

e. Review list of Prospective Capital Projects for 2020 – Pinion presented background. Wedekind questioned Fire radio
replacements, Stieve gave detailed explanation. Plautz questioned Schauf on mobile data computers and portable radios.
Schauf gave detailed explanation. He said that the cost of the radios now are $3,000/radio, and trying to stay ahead of the
need by buying three per year. Annual street projects was then discussed. A lengthy discussion took place regarding the
possibility of a premier resort tax. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to forward to Council for consideration with
next week’s Capital Plan discussion. Motion carried unanimously.

f. Consider requesting the State Legislature to appropriate more money for local road improvements – Wedekind voiced
his opinion and is against this, but believes that we need a wheel tax. Kolb moved, Plautz seconded to approve. Motion
carried unanimously.

g. Consider creation of a new Ordinance requiring gun shops to have a video surveillance system – Truman presented the
draft ordinance to the Committee along with a memorandum summarizing the legal background on the issue. Schauf
explained the PD’s request for the ordinance as stemming from an incident involving the theft of a gun from a local gun
store and the problems caused to the investigation by there not being video surveillance at the gun store. It was moved by
Kolb, seconded by Plautz to forward to the Council with a positive recommendation. Motion carried unanimously.

h. Review and recommendation to renew an Agreement with Waste Management for Refuse and Recycling disposal at
their Lake Delton Transfer Station – Pinion said the current agreement is from 2010. He said it was a three-year agreement
that would automatically renew each year with a maximum increase of 3%. He said that it has not been 3% each year, solid
waste has been consistent; however, recycling Waste Management has not increased the price in the past four years. He said
recycling rate is at $97.94/ton, if they had increased the price by 3% per year, we would be at approximately $108.00. He
said what they are proposing with the new contract because the demand for recycling is diminishing, as well as the price that
they are being compensated for those items, they would like to see us start at a cost of $120.00, which is a 20% increase
over the current. He said that on the recycling side of pure disposal the City is doing well, because we get a rebate from
what they actually sell that is not reflected in the base price and then we get the recycling grant. He said that instead of a 3%
increase, Waste Management wants to tie it to the mythical consumer price indexing for urban consumers for water, sewer,
and trash collection. He said when he looked at this over the last 12 months it averaged about ½ per month, 6% per year.
Pinion feels that there is room to negotiate. He said that the location is convenient for the City; however, citizens need to be
re-educated because there have been changes made in the nature of recyclable goods being accepted. He said that in
exchange for re-educating the public, they would provide adhesive stickers to be placed directly on carts. He said that it is
up to the discretion of Waste Management; if there is more than 10% garbage in the recycling they will reject the load and
charge $70.00/ton as garbage. Gilman said that the flyer would be in the Newsletter being printed in September. Pinion said
that updating the entire refuse ordinance with be forthcoming to the Committee with suggested changes. It was moved by
Kolb, seconded by Plautz to recommend continued negotiations with Waste Management for Refuse and Recycling disposal
and forward to Council for final approval. Motion carried unanimously.

i. Review and recommendation to approve an Amendment to the 2019 Budget to cover the cost of the pending 2019
Street Improvement Projects – Pinion presented the background for the requested amendment. It was moved by Kolb,
seconded by Plautz to approve the amendment to the 2019 Budget as requested. Motion carried unanimously.

Informational Items
a. Discuss possible amendment to Section 13.24 Normal Domestic Strength sewage to add to .5 part per billion (ppb) limit for

mercury – Peterson presented background. This amendment would assist the City in applying a waiver on the 1.3 ppb for a
minimization study. This would help passing it through the EPA.

b. Discuss Milwaukee PD’s request for staff t next year’s DNC – Schauf said that he received a request from the City of
Milwaukee Police Department requesting officer and equipment support for the Democratic National Convention from July
10-17, 2020. He said that hours, wages, etc., would be totally reimbursed. Schauf said that he would have to find out exactly
what resources they are looking for.

15



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #411

c. Discuss traffic calming options on Washington Avenue between 2nd and Water Streets - Schauf said that based on the
department’s participation with the Bureau of Transportation and Safety program, they are now in a pool for a grant for
equipment. The grant will be for 2020, for $2500, and it has to be used for equipment that are not budgetary items. He said
this grant could be used for more permanent solar-powered speed boards.

d. Alderperson Training: Council Handbook (Time permitting) – After reports, Attorney Truman provided training to
Committee on the Council Handbook.

Reports
a. Utility Superintendent’s Report – Peterson presented four projects for 2020 budget. He indicated that Rob Klein and

Wendy Hanley would be retiring in 2020. Sanitary sewer budget will go to Baker Tilly for calculating sewer rates for 2020.
He said that there are nine lead services to be replaced.

b. Street Superintendent’s Report – Gilman presented his monthly report. He said there were three alley disassembled.
Gasser will be paving Sumac on Monday.

c. Police Chief’s Report – Schauf said that Eric Oakeson has been promoted to detective. He said that he is working with
the City Attorney and school to continue the work on the truancy problems.

d. Fire Chief’s Report – Stieve stated that the department received a resignation effective August 12, time constraints and
loss of passion for the job are the reasons given. Mark Willer presented the results of the open house. He said they received
seven potential candidates show up and an additional three or four that said that they could not make it, but were interested.
Stieve said that there would be a hiring process the first week in September. He said that academy classes are happening
again this year. He said that final details are being worked out the Delton Fire Department on the Auto Aid Agreement.
Stieve introduced Megan Krautkramer, Building Inspector/Fire Inspector/Paid-per-Call Firefighter to the Committee.

AJOURNMENT – It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to adjourn at 3:02 p.m. Motion carried.

BARABOO BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (BID), BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S August 21, 2019
Members Present: S. Fay, B. Stelling, T. Wickus, H. Kierzek, S. Byberg, T. Sloan
Members Absent: N. Marklein Bacher, S. Brunker
Others Noticed: Ed Geick

Call to Order: Sarah Fay presided over the meeting, called it to order at 5:49 PM and noted compliance with the Open Meeting
Law.

Meeting Minutes:
Moved by Byberg, seconded by Kierzek and unanimously carried to approve the minutes of June 19, 2019.

Agenda: Moved by Wickus, seconded by Sloan and unanimously carried to approve the agenda as published.

Reports of Officers and Committies
President:

 Budget work due next month
 Discussion of Committee membership
 Consider new projects in BID

Appearance:
 Watering being done now. Original company pulled out of contract. Willy Deppe is doing watering. Gatehouse did

summer planters. She is working on fall planters. Jim’s Greenhouse will do planters in 2020.
 Regular garland company pulled out. Lacey and Bekah trying to work with Boy Scouts.

Finance:
 $202 from Farmers Market

Parking:
 Sarah is trying to locate someone to do weeds

Promotions:
 Most of budget is spent

Branding:
 Subcommittees are being created to work on this

New Business:
 Vouchers:

Capitol Newspapers $ 1305.00
Next Level 180.00
Minuteman Press 219.53
Gatehouse Gardens 1880.00

16



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 10, 2019 Volume 42 Page #412

TOTAL: $ 3584.53
Moved by Wickus, seconded by Byberg to approve vouchers and unanimously carried.

 Social Media – Sarah has done a draft page
 Mural at Civic Center lot –Maybe a high school project – Consider a veterans tie in
 Burn Development for video production – Moved by Stelling, seconded by Wickus to move $1,000 from Business

Development to Promotions.
Correspondence & Announcements:

1. Next Meeting: Wednesday, September 18, 2019 at 5:45pm, Committee Room #205.

Adjournment: Moved by Wickus, seconded by Byberg to adjourn at approximately 6:20 p.m.

 Copies of these meeting minutes are on file in the Clerk’s office: None.

 Petitions & Correspondence Being Referred: None.

CLOSED SESSION
Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Ellington to go into Closed Session as per §19.85 (1)(e),

Wis. Stat., for deliberating or negotiating the purchasing or public properties, the investing of public
funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reason
require a closed session (GovHR will report on status of potential candidates for the City
Administrator position).

Council Members Present: Wedekind, Kolb, Plautz, Sloan, Petty, Ellington, Alt, Kierzek, Thurow
Council Members Absent:
Others Present: Mayor Palm, Clerk Zeman, Adm. Geick, Atty. Truman

OPEN SESSION
Moved by Ellington, seconded by Wedekind and carried on a unanimous roll call vote to

return to Open Session as per WI Stats 19.85(2) to address any business that may be the result of
deliberations made in Closed Session.

ADJOURNMENT
Moved by Petty, seconded by Kierzek, and carried on voice vote, that the meeting adjourn at

9:17pm.

Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

17



S:\Council\Resolutions\9-24-19 Claims.docx

CA –1

RESOLUTION NO. 2019 - Dated: September 24, 2019

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background:

Fiscal Note: (Check one) [ ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the Accounts Payable, in the amount of $ as recommended for payment by the
Finance/Personnel Committee, be allowed and ordered paid.

Offered By: Consent Approved by Mayor:
Motion:
Second: Certified by City Clerk:

18



S:\Council\Resolutions\9-24-2019 Liquor License Applications.doc

CA-2
RESOLUTION NO. 2019 - Dated: September 24, 2019

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

B ackgrou nd: In order to be in full compliance with State Law, the City recently amended Chapter 12,
Intoxicating Liquor and Fermented Malt Beverages. Because of this change, the Administrative
Committee is now required to review all Liquor License applications and make a recommendation to
Council.

Liquor License applications are reviewed by the Police Department, the Fire Inspector, and Zoning.

All Liquor Licenses will expire June 30, 2020 with the exception of the Picnic License. A Picnic
License, also known as a Temporary Beer and/or Wine License, is typically issued for a one or two day
event.

The Liquor Licenses listed below were recommended to Council for approval at the September 5, 2019
Administrative Committee meeting.

FiscalN ote:(checkone) [X ]N otRequ ired [ ]B u dgeted E xpenditu re [ ]N otB u dgeted
C omments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the City Clerk be authorized to issue the following Picnic Licenses:

 St. Joseph Catholic Parish, 10/11/2019 & 11/08/2019

Offered by: Administrative Comm. Approved by Mayor: ___________________________________
Motion:
Second: Certified by Clerk:

19



NBR - 1

RESOLUTION NO. Dated: September 24, 2019

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: Thisresolution seekstheapprovalof theleaseof theP ierceP arkP avilion fortheSouth
C entralC yclonesY outh H ockeyA ssociation.It isrecommendedtherent continueto bewaivednotingthat
theprogram servesasa benefit to ourlocalyouth hockeyparticipantsaswellasin consideration of past
contributionsmadeto thefacility.

The2020leaserateisrecommendedto requirethegroupto payforallutilitiesduringthe6month term of the
lease.

Thisleasehasbeen recommendedforapprovalbytheP arksandRecreation C ommission at theirSeptember9,
2019meeting.

Fiscal Note: [ x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

TH A T theSouth C entralC yclonesH ockeyA ssociation leaseforuseof theP ierceP ark
P avilion beapprovedforthe6-month term of O ctober15,2019-A pril14,2020.

Offered by: P ark& RecC ommission Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

20



To: Finance Committee/City Council
From: Mike Hardy, Parks and Recreation Director
Date: September 24, 2019
Re: 2019-2020 Pierce Park Pavilion lease to South Central

Cyclones Hockey

The C ityhas provid ed u se of the P ierce P arkP avilion to the localyou thhockey clu b foru se
since its constru ction in the late 1990’s.C onstru ction was completed withgrantfu nd s from the
state,C ityfu nd s and asu bstantiald onation from the hockey clu b.D u e to the amou ntof the
d onation as wellas severalbu ild ingimprovements the clu b has shared the costof overthe years,
the cityhas nevercharged them rent.W e d o requ ire them to payfortheiru tilityu sage d u ringthe
rentterm however.

A s the hockey clu b now charges rent(ice time)and allows the highschoolhockeyteam to u se
the facilityd u ringtheirlease,Iasked the C ityA d ministratorto review the lease to be su re this
wou ld notpu tthe C ityorhockeyclu b atriskin d oingso,since terms have changed somewhat.
The C ityA ttorneymad e severalminorad d itions/ed its to allow forthe hockey clu b to continu e
theirallowingthe highschoolto u se the facility forareasonable charge to covertheirexpenses.

O therterms in the lease remain the same as in the past.The lease term wou ld begin O ctober15,
2019 and terminate A pril14,2020.

This lease was recommend ed foracceptance bythe P arks and Recreation C ommission attheir

September9,2019 meetingand is u pforconsid eration bythe Finance C ommittee tonightas
well.

21



C:\Users\mhardy\Desktop\Lease - Cyclones 2019-2020.docx 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

Lessee:   South Central Cyclones Youth Hockey, a Wisconsin Non-profit Corporation. 
Lessor:   City of Baraboo, Wisconsin. 
Leased Premises: The Pierce Park Multi-Purpose Pavilion. 
 
  
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is entered into as of the ____________ day of _____________, 20____, by and 
between the South Central Cyclones Youth Hockey (“Lessee”), a Wisconsin non-profit corporation with a mailing 
address of P.O. Box 358, Wisconsin Dells, WI 53965, and the City of Baraboo (“Lessor”), a Wisconsin municipal 
corporation with a mailing address of  101 S. Blvd., Baraboo, WI 53913.  The Lessee and Lessor may be jointly 
referred to herein as the “Parties.” 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

 WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease the Pierce Park Multi-Purpose Pavilion (“Leased Premises”) on a 6-
month basis, from ______________ through _______________, for the purpose of conducting a youth ice 
hockey program; and  
 

WHEREAS, Lessor is willing and desirous of leasing the Leased Premises to Lessee upon the terms and 
conditions hereinafter set forth; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the rights granted to the Lessee by this Lease Agreement are and shall remain subordinate 
to the obligations of the Lessor and the rights granted the Department of the Interior, National Park Service 
under the Land and Water Conservation Fund Act of 1965 dedicating the facilities in this agreement for public 
recreation purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Lessee has made, at Lessee’s cost and expense, the improvements to the Leased Premises 
described on Exhibit A, attached hereto. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the improvements made to the Leased Premises by Lessee and 
in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, Lessor hereby leases and rents 
to Lessee and Lessee does hereby lease and rent from Lessor the Leased Premises, all as hereinafter set forth. 
 
1. TERM OF LEASE.  Lessor hereby leases to Lessee the Leased Premises for the period from ___________ 

to ____________ (“Lease Term”).   
 
2. LIMITATION ON TERM OF LEASE.  During the Lease Term, Lessor reserves the use of the skating rink, 

restrooms, and warming area for recreational skating for the general public as provided in Section 4(B), 
below. 

 
3. RENTS, UTILITIES, REPAIRS, AND MAINTENANCE. During the Lease Term, the Parties agree as follows: 

A. Lessee shall pay no rent to Lessor for the use of the Leased Premises.  
B. Lessee shall provide and pay for all utilities on the Leased Premises, including, but not limited 

to, electricity, water, heating, fuel, and telephone and other communication services used in 
connection with the Leased Premises.  

C. Lessee shall see to it that sufficient heat is provided in the enclosed service portion and 
restrooms of the Pavilion to prevent damage to plumbing and fixtures.  

D. Lessee shall be responsible for the normal and routine repairs and maintenance for all 
equipment, fixtures, and mechanical systems owned by Lessee and for any damages caused by 
the failure or removal of the equipment, fixtures, or mechanical systems owned by Lessee.    

22



 

E. Lessor shall be responsible for the repair and maintenance of equipment, fixtures, and 
mechanical systems owned by Lessor and for any damages caused by the failure of any 
equipment, fixtures, or mechanical systems owned by Lessor.   

F. Lessee shall immediately notify Lessor of any need for repair and/or maintenance to the Leased 
Premises. 

 
4. USE OF LEASED PREMISES. During the Lease Term, the Parties agree as follows: 

A. Lessee shall use the Leased Premises exclusively for ice hockey, ice skating, operation of a 
concession food and beverage stand, and conducting other recreation-related activities related 
to the purpose of promoting and encouraging people of all ages to participate in ice skating and 
other recreational activities.   

B. PUBLIC RECREATIONAL SKATING TIMES:  Lessor reserves the use of the ice skating rink, 
restrooms, and warming areas for recreational skating time for the general public a minimum of 
three (3) hours per week as well as allowing for Free Admission skating the last Sunday in 
January for Winterfest Activities from 6-8pm. In addition to the required minimum three (3) 
hours of public skating per week, Lessee will also provide public recreational skating on four (4) 
Baraboo School District winter holiday break days from noon-3 pm.   

1) The times and days for supervised recreational skating for the public shall be approved 
by the City of Baraboo Parks and Recreation Department and shall be publicly displayed 
by the Lessee at the Leased Premises.  

2) It is agreed by the parties that the Lessor shall have sole and exclusive use of the Leased 
Premises during the designated public skating times.   

3) No organized team sport activity shall be undertaken during the public skating times. 
C. Lessor shall make the facility available for rent by community groups for public recreation 

activities during the months when ice is not maintained. These activities must be approved by 
Lessor in advance to assure accessibility by the public. 

 
5. OPERATIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF LESSEE. Lessee covenants and agrees to perform the 

following in a careful, efficient, and businesslike manner for the duration of the Lease Term: 
A. Lessee shall have full authority over the scheduling of ice time and building use during the Lease 

Term, subject to weather conditions and satisfactory ice surface conditions and subject to 
Section 4(B), above, provided that Lessee’s ice rink managers shall be granted reasonable 
discretion to determine whether ice conditions are satisfactory.  

B. Lessee agrees that Lessee shall provide volunteers to the City during the public skating hours as 
set forth in Section 4(B), above, all at no charge to the City and said volunteers provided by 
Lessee shall be City volunteers who shall be responsible for supervising and monitoring the 
public skating programs. Persons designated as City volunteers for the public ice time shall first 
be approved by the Parks and Recreation Department and shall conduct themselves at all times 
in a safe, sober, and courteous manner while acting as City volunteers. Lessee agrees to take 
immediate corrective action upon receiving notice from the Lessor that Lessor has received a 
legitimate complaint regarding the conduct of any person assigned as a City volunteer during 
the public ice skating time described herein. 

C. Lessee shall be responsible for, and provide and pay for, all utilities used during the public 
skating time reserved herein by the Lessor, as set forth in Section 4(B), above.  

D. In order to reimburse Lessee for the overhead costs incurred by Lessee during the public skating 
use reserved by the City as provided for in Section 4(B), above, Lessee may charge a fee for ice 
time use for recreational public skating,  private skating parties and/or organized group, unless 
otherwise prohibited pursuant to Section 4(B), above. The fee shall not exceed the reasonable 
overhead costs allocated to the public ice time and any such fee shall first be reviewed and 
approved by the Baraboo Parks and Recreation Director or designee. 

E. Lessee may use the Leased Premises for the operation of a concession stand for the sale of food, 
beverages, and other merchandise. Commented [TE1]: Is there anything you don’t want them 

to sell? 

23



 

F. The Parties acknowledge that from a practical and economical standpoint it is impossible for the 
Lessee or Lessor to monitor the use of the ice on the Leased Premises during times when the 
Pavilion is closed and unsupervised. Therefore, Lessee shall not be obligated to establish any 
procedures designed to prevent persons from using the Pavilion ice and/or undertaking 
recreational activities on the Leased Premises during unsupervised times when the facilities are 
closed. 

G. Lessee shall be responsible for all physical operations of the Leased Premises and its programs 
during the Lease Term, including, but not limited to, setup and takedown of hockey boards, ice 
making, resurfacing and maintenance, cleaning of Pavilion, service building, concession stand, 
restrooms, and all areas surrounding the Pavilion, including the parking areas and walkway areas 
except for snow removal which shall be performed by Lessor as provided in Section 17. 

H. Except as expressly provided for herein, Lessee shall not make any alterations to or 
improvements on the Leased Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor and any and 
all such alterations or improvements made by Lessee shall become the absolute property of 
Lessor at the end of the Lease Term. Lessee shall be authorized to install and operate an ice rink 
refrigeration system and a forced air furnace heating system on the Leased Premises in 
accordance with standards and specifications approved by Lessor. Lessee shall further retain 
ownership of the items of property described on Exhibit B, attached hereto, and Lessee may 
remove said items from the Leased Premises at the end of the Lease Term provided, however, 
that all such removals of property shall be undertaken and completed in a manner so as to 
restore the Leased Premises to its original condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and any 
damages resulting from the removal of fixtures shall be satisfactorily repaired. 

I. Lessee shall, at its expense, maintain The Leased Premises in as good order and repair as the 
same were at the beginning of The Lease Term, reasonable wear and tear accepted; provided, 
however, Lessor shall be responsible for all structural repairs. 

J. Except to the extent expressly authorized in writing by Lessor, Lessee shall not create or permit 
to be created any lien, encumbrance, security interest, or other charge, including liens for work, 
labor or materials done or furnished or alleged to have been done or furnished on the Leased 
Premises. 

K. Lessee agrees that any and all expenses incurred by Lessor in the conducting of its operations at 
the Leased Premises shall be paid on or before the due date thereof.  

 
6. USE OF LESSEE REVENUES.  If Lessee is not in default of this Lease or of the terms of the attached 

agreement, Lessee shall be entitled to retain full ownership and control of all revenues generated by 
Lessee pursuant to its activities on the Leased Premises during the Lease Term.  Lessee agrees that the 
revenues shall only be used as set forth in the Agreement between Lessor and Lessee dated July 25, 
1996, which Agreement is incorporated by reference and is on file in the City Clerk’s office.   

 
7. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION.  

A. Lessor agrees to maintain fire and extended insurance coverage on the Leased Premises and on 
the personal property on the Leased Premises owned by Lessor. Lessee shall be responsible for 
providing insurance coverage for any personal property and fixtures on the Leased Premises 
belonging to Lessee. The insurance need not apply during public skating times designated under 
Section 4(B), above. 

B. Except during public skating times designated under Section 4(B), above, Lessee further 
acknowledges and agrees that liability for bodily injury, disability, and/or death of its agents, 
volunteers, employees, invitees, guests, or any other person, or for damage to property, caused, 
in any way, directly or indirectly by the operations of Lessee, its agents, employees or 
volunteers, invites, guests, or any other person upon the Leased Premises or pursuant to Lessee 
carrying out its operations on the Leased Premises shall be assumed by Lessee and Lessee shall 
indemnify and hold Lessor harmless from all claims, judgments, actions, proceedings, damages 
and liabilities, including reasonable attorney’s fees, including any acts or omissions by Lessor, its 

Commented [TE2]: Mike: What agreement gets attached? 
Or is it the July 25, 1996 agreement? 

24



 

employees, agents, representatives, and volunteers whatsoever. The provisions of this section 
shall only apply during the Lease Term. 

C. Insurance Requirements.  
1) General Liability coverage from an insurance company with an A.M. Best ranking of at 

least A- with said coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial 
General Liability Form, including coverage for fire, personal property and fixtures with 
the following minimum limits and coverage: 

1. Each Occurrence – minimum of $1,000,000 
2. Personal Injury – minimum of $1,000,000 
3. General Aggregate – minimum of $2,000,000 
4. Fire Damage limit — any one fire minimum of $50,000 
5. Medical Expense limit — any one person minimum of $5,000 
6. Workers’ Compensation as required by the State of Wisconsin, and Employers 

Liability insurance with sufficient limits to meet underlying Umbrella Liability 
insurance requirements. 

2) The insurance required by the Lessor is primary coverage and that any insurance or 
self-insurance maintained by the Lessor, its officers, council members, agents, 
employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss.  

3) All insurance shall be in full force prior to commencing the Lease and remain in force 
until the Lease terminates or expires 

4) This coverage and the certificate of insurance shall name as additional insureds the 
City of Baraboo, its officers, directors, commissions, boards, employees, volunteers, 
and agents. 

5) Lessee agrees to procure and maintain the liability insurance coverage provided by 
USA Hockey, Inc. A certificate of insurance verifying Lessee's insurance coverage as 
set forth above shall be delivered to Lessor together with proof of payment of the 
premium therefore and such certificate shall evidence the obligation of the insurer 
not to cancel or materially amend the policy without thirty (30) calendar days prior 
notice to Lessor. 

D. INDEMNIFICATION:  Lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Lessor, and the Lessor’s 
employees, agents, council members, officers and volunteers harmless from and against any 
and all claims, actions, suits, demands, assessments, or judgments asserted, and any and all 
losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s 
fees, accounting fees, and investigation costs to the extent permitted by law) alleged or 
incurred arising out of or relating to any operations, acts, or omissions of the indemnifying 
party or any of its officers, employees, agents, authorized volunteers and invitees in the 
exercise of the indemnifying party's rights or the performance or observance of the 
indemnifying party's obligations under this Lease. Prompt notice must be given of any claim, 
and the City will have control of any defense or settlement. 

 
8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS OF LESSEE.  Lessee acknowledges and agrees that it is an 

independent contractor and that its business is independently owned and operated and that nothing in 
this Lease shall be interpreted to cause or result in, directly or indirectly, a principal/agent or employer/ 
employee relationship between Lessee and Lessor and nothing in this Lease shall in any way be 
construed as an agreement of partnership, general or limited, joint venture or as any agency relationship 
whatsoever between Lessor and Lessee. Lessee agrees not to represent or advertise in any way that its 
relationship with the Lessor other than as provided in this section. 

 
9. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  Lessee agrees to conduct its operations at the Leased Premises in a manner so 

as not to discriminate against any person because of age, race, creed, color, handicap, marital status, 
sex, national origin and ancestry, arrest record or conviction record, or any other form of discrimination 
specifically prohibited by applicable State or Federal Laws. Lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold 

25



 

harmless Lessor, and the City of Baraboo, from claims, actions, proceedings, damages, and liabilities 
arising out of alleged discriminatory acts or omissions by Lessee in connection with the activities 
conducted by Lessee on the Leased Premises. 

 
10. LAWFUL USE.  Lessee agrees to abide by all applicable ordinances, zoning codes, regulations and statutes 

as it pertains to their use of the Leased Premises for the duration of the Lease Term. 
 
11. RIGHT TO PLACE SIGNS.  Lessee shall have the privilege of placing on the Leased Premises signs thereon 

provided, however, that Lessor shall have the right to approve the size and shape of the signs and 
provided that the signs are neatly and professionally prepared. 

 
12. SUB-LETTING OR ASSIGNMENT.   

A. This Lease shall not be assigned by Lessee either in whole or in part and during the Lease Term 
no portion of the Leased Premises may be subleased or otherwise occupied by any party other 
than the employees, agents, or volunteers of the Lessee for the purpose of undertaking the 
activities to be performed by Lessee under this Lease Agreement except as specifically set forth 
herein, unless prior written approval is obtained from the Park and Recreation Director who 
may, in his or her sole discretion, decline to grant such approval.  Notwithstanding the 
preceding, it is expressly understood that Lessee may allow ice time for private skating groups 
and parties to be conducted at specific dates and times, provided, however, Lessee shall not be 
relieved of any liabilities under this Lease as a result of any such use of the Leased Premises and 
Lessee shall not be permitted to profit from said use, although Lessee may charge a reasonable 
fee to recoup its expenses. 

B. Lessee may assign this Lease to the Baraboo National Bank for collateral purposes.  
 
13. REMOVAL OF TENANT'S PROPERTY UPON TERMINATION.  Lessee, upon termination of this Lease, may 

remove any and all inventory and other property located upon the Leased Premises and listed on Exhibit 
B, attached hereto. All fixtures installed by Lessee on the Leased Premises and not described on Exhibit 
B shall become the absolute property of Lessor upon installation. Lessee agrees that all fixtures shall be 
installed in a good and workmanlike manner. Lessee agrees that Lessee shall deliver up possession of 
the Leased Premises quietly and peaceably at the expiration of this Lease, in good condition and repair 
ordinary wear and tear excepted. 

 
14. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS.  Lessee agrees to promptly observe, obey, 

and comply with all rules, laws, regulations, ordinances, directives, orders, and requirements of the State 
of Wisconsin, Sauk County, City of Baraboo and the Park and Recreation Commission, and the like 
concerning the Leased Premises or appurtenances thereto or connected with the enjoyment thereof; 
and to observe such rules and regulations as may be required by the insurance companies or 
underwriters that may insure the Leased Premises or appurtenance thereto. All employees, agents and 
volunteers of Lessee shall conduct themselves in a safe, sober and courteous manner while performing 
services at the Leased Premises. Lessee agrees to take immediate corrective action upon receiving notice 
from Lessor that Lessor has received a legitimate complaint regarding the conduct of an employee, 
agent, or volunteer of Lessee while said person was performing services for Lessee at the Leased 
Premises. 

 
14. LIMITATION ON TENANCY.  Lessee agrees that the tenancy granted herein is subject to the following 

limitations and rights of Lessor: 
A. Subject to weather conditions and satisfactory ice surface conditions, Lessor shall have the use 

of the ice for conducting ice skating programs as provided in Section 4(B). 
B. Lessor shall have the right to use the parking areas described on Exhibit A, attached hereto, for 

City activities. 

Commented [TE3]: Does this work for you? 

26



 

C. Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to enter upon and within the Leased Premises by 
its agents or employees at any time for the purpose of making routine inspections, or for such 
other purpose as Lessor deems necessary. Lessee shall not change any of the locks to the doors 
on The Leased Premises without the prior consent of Lessor. 

D. The rights granted to the Lessee by this agreement are and shall remain subordinate to the 
obligations of the Lessor and the rights granted the Department of the Interior, National Park 
Service (NPS) under the Land and Water Conservation Fund Act of 1965 dedicating the land 
described herein for public outdoor recreation purposes. 

 
15. DEFAULT BY LESSEE.  If Lessee defaults in the performance of any of the terms and conditions of this 

Lease, then this Lease may immediately be declared forfeited by Lessee at the option of Lessor. Lessor 
may thereafter reenter without notice or demand. Any forfeiture or re-entry under this section shall 
permit Lessor to re-let the premises after taking possession thereof. Lessee further agrees that the 
following shall constitute acts of default of this Lease on the part of Lessee: 

A. Unless excused by Lessor, the failure of Lessee to provide sufficient City volunteers for the public 
ice time at the scheduled times and in the manner prescribed by Section 4(B) hereof. Lessee 
shall be given one written warning of a violation of this subsection and a violation thereafter, 
during the same Lease Term, shall be a default of this Lease and grounds for termination hereof. 

B. The non-performance of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Lease not covered under 
the subsection above which is not cured within seven days after notice thereof from Lessor. If 
the default or action complained of is of such a nature that it cannot be completely cured within 
such seven-day period, such default shall not be enforceable against Lessee if Lessee shall have 
begun curing it within the seven-day period and shall, with reasonable diligence and in good 
faith, proceed to remedy it. 

C. If Lessee voluntarily or involuntarily abandons, deserts, vacates, or discontinues the operations 
and obligations required of Lessee under this Lease, or if Lessee becomes the subject of 
bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary. 

D. If Lessee shall default in the payment of any obligations owed by Lessee to the Baraboo National 
Bank, or any other creditor, or if Lessee otherwise defaults or neglects, fails or refuses to 
perform any other term, covenant, or condition set forth in any promissory note, loan 
agreement, or other written obligation in which default is not cured within seven (7) calendar 
days after notice thereof from Lessor. 
 

16. MANNER OF GIVING NOTICE.  Any notice by either party to the other pursuant to the provisions of this 
Lease or any law shall be given by personal delivery or by regular first class mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed to the parties for whom it is intended at the address shown in this Lease, or at such other 
address as such party may have designated in writing. 

 
17. LESSOR'S SNOW REMOVAL RESPONSIBILITIES.  Lessor shall provide snow removal from all parking and 

walkway areas of the Leased Premises, provided, however, Lessor shall not be obligated to remove snow 
from said areas until snow removal activities on public streets have been completed. Lessor will not be 
obligated to remove snow from parking areas and walkways if this will require Lessor to incur overtime 
pay obligations to its employees. Lessee agrees to notify the Street Superintendent when a snowfall 
occurs prior to or during a scheduled tournament in order to enable Lessor to attempt to provide 
reasonable snow removal services for the tournament. 

 
18. DISPUTES.  The Parties each agree to try and resolve via informal mediation any disputes arising under 

this Lease prior to taking any further legal action. 
 
19. AMENDMENTS.  This Lease may be modified or amended at any time by a writing duly authorized and 

executed by both Lessor and Lessee. It may not be amended or modified by oral agreements or 

27



 

understanding between the parties, or their agents, unless the same shall be reduced to writing duly 
authorized and executed by both Lessor and Lessee. 

  
20. MISCELLANEOUS.   

A. Lessee acknowledges and agrees that the management and administration of the Pierce Park 
Complex, including the Pierce Park Multi-Purpose Pavilion, is wholly and exclusively under the 
jurisdiction of Lessor, or its authorized representatives, and Lessee shall at all times undertake 
its activities pursuant to this Lease in a way and manner so as not to interfere with any 
governmental services performed by Lessor, or the City of Baraboo, its employees, agents, and 
representatives. Lessor and Lessee acknowledge and agree that each party shall have the right 
at all times to enforce the provisions of this Lease in strict accordance with the terms hereof, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of either party in refraining from doing so 
at any time or times to enforce its rights under the provisions of this Lease strictly in accordance 
with the same shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary 
to the specific provisions of this Lease or as having in any way or manner modified or waived 
the same.  

B. The headings used herein are for convenience and shall not be resorted to for purposes of 
interpretation or construction hereof.  

C. No waiver of any breach or breaches of any provisions of this Lease shall be construed to be a 
waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of such provision, or any other provision hereof. 

 
 

SOUTH CENTRAL CYCLONES YOUTH HOCKEY 
 

Signature: _____________________________  Witness Signature: ___________________________ 
    Richard Capener, President   Witness Print: _______________________________ 
   
Date Signed: ___________________________     
    

   
CITY OF BARABOO, WISCONSIN 

 
 
Signature: ____________________________  Witness Signature: ___________________________ 
     Mike Hardy, Parks & Recreation Director Witness Print: _______________________________ 
 
Date Signed: ________________________________ 
 
 
 
     

 
 

  

28



 

 
EXHIBIT  A 

Improvements Completed by Lessee per Agreement dated July 25, 1996 
 
 
 

Lessee shall install a permanent ice rink concrete floor and refrigeration system. The floor shall be paved 
in concrete for use year-round for a variety of functions. 
 

The concrete floor shall be underlain by the subsoil frost prevention piping system. Rink floor insulation 
shall be installed and a 6-inch concrete slab containing steel re-bar and a rink refrigeration system. The entire 
pavilion shall be provided with a concrete floor although the refrigeration system will only be installed in the 
rink area. 
 

The compressor room in the pavilion shall also be furnished with a concrete floor once the refrigeration 
system piping is in place. The compressor room will house one factory assembled, multiple compressor, liquid 
chiller system including all electrical control panels for operation. 
 

The standards and specifications for all the above shall be in accordance with plans and specifications 
prepared by Mid-State Associates, dated June 1996 as Project No. 999016. SPC, which plans and specifications 
are incorporated in this Lease by reference.  
 

29



 

 
EXHIBIT  B 

Property  Owned  By  Lessee 
 
 
 
1. Compressors and electrical components for ice refrigeration. 
 
2. Bryant - Plus 90 Furnace. (This furnace is not hooked up and is a back up. The furnace that is 

hooked up is owned by Lessor.) 
 
3. Scoreboards. 
 
4. Display cases. 
 
5. Refrigerated display case. 
 
6. Warming table. 
 
7. Refrigerator. 
 
8. Freezer. 
 
9. Griddle. 
 
10. Deep fryer. 
 
11. Dishwasher. 
 
12. Beverage dispensers. 
 
13. Any other miscellaneous items of personal property, which are not fixtures or which are not 

attached or affixed to The Leased Premises, and which are purchased solely with Lessee's funds. 
 
 
 
Items Added: 
 
14. Hockey Boards and glass associated with Hockey Boards. 
 
15. Scorers Box, Penalty Boxes, Players Boxes, and all materials located within. 
 
16. Boilers associated with the in-floor hot water heat. 

 
17. Bleachers. 
 
 
 
 
 

30



NBR - 2

RESOLUTION NO. Dated: September 24, 2019

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: This resolution seeks the approval of 2020 Parks, Recreation and Forestry Department
Seasonal Wage Rates for all park, recreation, zoo and swimming pool seasonal staff positions.

These rates have been recommended for approval by the Parks and Recreation Commission at their
September 9, 2019 meeting.

Fiscal Note: [ x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the 2020 Park and Recreation Seasonal Wage Rates be approved as presented for
consideration by the Parks and Recreation Commission.

Offered by: Park & Rec Commission Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

31



To: Finance Committee/City Council
From: Mike Hardy, Parks and Recreation Director
Date: September 24, 2019
Re: 2020 Seasonal Wage Rate recommendations

The P arks,Recreation and Forestry D epartmenthas prepared recommend ations for2020
SeasonalEmployee W ages,inclu d ingrates forvariou s seasonalstaff positions in parks,
recreation,zoo and swimmingpoolpositions.To come u pwithrates,staff consid ers trend s in
application rates,comparables withsimilarcommu nities,need s forfu lfillingprograms as wellas
available bu d getsou rces to continu e to provid e expected park& recreation services in the
commu nity.

These rates have been u sed to figu re the 2020 bu d getpackage whichyou willbe consid eringin a
few weeks.

These rates as presented were recommend ed foracceptance bythe P arks and Recreation
C ommission attheirSeptember9,2019 meetingand is u pforconsid eration bythe Finance

C ommittee tonightas well.

32



Pool Manager $14.00-$15.00

Head Lifeguard (Red Cross LG & WSI certified) $11.00-$12.00

Lifeguards (Red Cross LG certified) $9.00-$10.00

WSI Instructors  (Red Cross WSI certified) $10.00-$11.00

Water Aerobics Instructor $10.00-$11.00

Pool Attendant $8.00-$9.00

Summer Recreation Specialist $10.00-$11.00

Adult Basketball Referees & Softball Umpires $25.00

Adult Volleyball Referee $15.00

Adult Sports Scorekeepers $8.00-$9.00

Adult Tennis/Pickleball Coordinator $20.00

Enrichment/Visual Arts Coordinator $14.00-$15.00

Enrichment/Visual Arts Instructor $8.00-$9.00

Sports & Fitness Coordinator $14.00-$15.00

Sports & Fitness Instructor $8.00-$9.00

Youth Tennis Coordinator $14.00-$15.00

Youth Tennis Instructor $8.00-$9.00

Tot Lot Coordinator $14.00-$15.00

Tot Lot Instructor $8.00-$9.00

Youth Sports Referee/Umpire $25.00

Youth Camp Coordinator $14.00-$15.00

Youth Camp Instructor $8.00-$9.00

Open Gym Supervisor $9.00-$10.00

Office Assistant $11.00-$12.00

Civic Center Weekend Maintenance $12.00-$13.00

Park Maintenance $14.00-$15.00

Langer Park Ice Rink Supervisor $10.00-$11.00

Zoo Technician $12.00-$13.00

Concessions Worker $8.00-$9.00

Zoo Resident/Intern $120/week

Park Commission President Date

Parks/Civic Center/Zoo per hour/game

2020 Seasonal/Part Time Parks & Recreation Wages

Swimming Pool per hour/game

Recreation per hour/game

33



NBR - 3

RESOLUTION NO. Dated: September 24, 2019

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: Thisresolution seekstheapprovalof namingfield#5at P ierceP ark“D on P ierceField”.

B araboo ThunderSoftballClubreceivedan offerof a $25,000donation from theD on P iercefamilyif thefield
werenamedafterD on.TheC lubnotedthat theyspent $68,281.41to developthefieldandthisdonation
wouldmeet cityrequirementsof 1/3of totalcost in orderto beconsideredfornamingrights.

Thisrequest hasbeen recommendedforapprovalbytheP arksandRecreation C ommission at theirA ugust 12,
2019meeting.

Fiscal Note: [ x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

TH A T P ierceP arkfield#5benamed“D on P ierceField”in recognition of a $25,000donation
madebytheP iercefamilyto theB araboo ThunderSoftballC lubto beusedforex pensesin developing
thesoftballfield.

Offered by: P ark& RecC ommission Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

34



To: Finance Committee/City Council
From: Mike Hardy, Parks and Recreation Director
Date: September 24, 2019
Re: Don Pierce Field naming rights

The P arks and Recreation C ommission received arequ estmad e bythe B araboo Thu nd erSoftball
C lu b attheirA u gu stmeetingto consid era$25,000 d onation from the D on P ierce familyforthe
pu rposes of makingimprovements to field #5atP ierce P ark.In exchange,d onors asked forthe
field to be named “D on P ierce Field ”.

The costto bu ild field #5,inclu d ingfencing,scoreboard ,d u gou ts,irrigation and infield mix was
noted by B araboo Thu nd erSoftball(who paid the expenses)at$68 ,28 1.41.B ased on C ity
policy,this meets the requ irementthatd onations mu stmeetorexceed 1/3of the costof the
facilityto be consid ered fornamingrights.

The P arks and Recreation C ommission recommend ed namingof the field “D on P ierce Field ”.
The $25,000 d onation wou ld be paid d irectlyto the B araboo Thu nd erSoftballC lu b and u sed to
make ad d itionalimprovements to the field ,inclu d ingapossible press box and fu tu re field
lighting.

35



NBR - 4

RESOLUTION NO. 2019- Dated: September 24, 2019
The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background

The Shared Ride Taxi Service contract for the City of Baraboo will expire December 31, 2019. Following the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) guidelines, the City advertised for proposals requesting a 5-year
term to begin January 1, 2020. Proposals were independently reviewed and scored by an Evaluation Committee
made up of the following:

 Ed Geick, City Administrator
 Cynthia Haggard, City Finance Director
 Pat Cannon, Community Development Director
 Lori Laux, City Treasurer
 Jessie Atkinson, City Accountant/Assistant

The Evaluation Committee independently and collectively ranked the proposals agreeing that the preferred provider
is Abby Vans, Inc. The Committee’s work has been reviewed by the WisDOT who has since given the City permission
to award the contract. The Technical Scores, Price Score, Total Score and Ranking are as follows:

Provider Technical Score Price Score Total Score Rank
Abby Vans, Inc. 326 30 356 1
Running, Inc. 327 24 351 2
F.D.S Enterprises, Inc. 241 18 259 3

Abby Vans, Inc. will be a new provider for the City, replacing Running, Inc. Abby Vans, Inc. plans to lease the City’s
taxi fleet. Abby Vans, Inc. currently has drivers who live in the area and will be utilizing other drivers in the area who
are familiar with Baraboo.

The taxi program is funded by Federal & State grants along with local fares.

Note: ( one) [x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

That the City of Baraboo award the Shared Ride Taxi Service contract, once received and approved to form by the City
Attorney, to Abby Vans, Inc. The hourly service rates are as follows:

Year 2020: $29.44 (Base Period 1 of 2)
Year 2021: $29.44 (Base Period 2 of 2)
Year 2022: $29.73 (Option Year 1)
Year 2023: $30.03 (Option Year 2)
Year 2024: $30.33 (Option Year 3)

That the taxi vehicles owned by the City of Baraboo be leased to Abby Vans, Inc. for the term of the contract.

Offered by: Finance Committee Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

36



S:\Council\Resolutions\9-24-19 Agreement with Waste Management for Refuse and Recyclable Disposal.docx

NBR - 5

RE SO L UTIO N N O .2019- D ated:September24,2019

TheC ityof B araboo,W isconsin

B ackground:TheC ityof B araboo last approvedan A greement w ith W asteM anagement in
2010.It hada 3-yrterm w ith automaticrenew alprovisionsforsubsequent years.Recently,
W asteM anagement reachedout to staff to negotiatea new 5-yrA greement with theC ityof
B araboo sincethecost of disposalhasoutpacedthat incrementalincreasesin theautomatic
renew alprovisionsof theex istingA greement,especiallyfortherecyclablematerials.

Thebasefeeforrefuseis$63.66perton w ith $13.00perton fortax esandfees.Thereisa
provision to increasethedisposalfeeforthelesserof theC P I-U,W ater,Sewer,& Trash
C ollection or3% .

Thebasefeeforrecyclablesis$110.00perton anda credit amount perton basedon 80% of the
N et SaleP riceof therecyclablecommodities.Thereisa provision to increasethedisposalfeefor
thelesserof theC P I-U,W ater,Sew er,& Trash C ollection or4% .

This5-yrA greement hasan automaticannualrenewalprovision at theconclusion of theinitial5-
yrterm.

A t theirmeetingon A ugust 23rd,theP ublicSafetyC ommitteeunanimouslyrecommended
approvalof a new A greement w ith W asteM anagement forthedisposalof refuseandrecyclables
that isdeliveredto theirtransferfacilityon C TH B D ,south of I90/94.

FiscalN ote:(checkone) []N otRequired [X ]B udgetedE xpenditure [ ]N ot B udgeted
C omments

A Resolution approvinga contract w ith W asteM anagement of W isconsin,Inc.,fordisposal
of residentialrefuseandrecyclables.

Resolved,bytheC ommon C ouncilof theC ityof B araboo,SaukC ounty,W isconsin:

TheM ayorandtheC ityC lerkareauthorizedto enterinto a 5-yearIndustrialW asteD isposal
ServicesA greement w ith W asteM anagement of W isconsin,Inc.,forthetransport anddisposal
of residentialrefuseandrecyclablesbasedupon theattachedA greement.

O fferedby:P ublicSafetyC ommittee A pproved:
M otion:
Second: A ttest:

37



 
© Waste Management (Form Update: 07-2019) Page 1 of 2 ISA City of Baraboo 01.01.2020July 12, 2019 

 

 
INDUSTRIAL WASTE & DISPOSAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 
 
COMPANY:  

 
Waste Management of Wisconsin, Inc. 

 A WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPANY 

Address: W132 N10487 Grant Drive 
Germantown, WI  53022 

Signed:  

 Authorized Signature 

Name/Title:  

Effective Date: Jan. 1, 2020 Date 

 
CUSTOMER: 

 
City of Baraboo 

  

Address: 101 South Blvd. 
Baraboo, WI  53913 

Signed:  

 Authorized Signature 

Name/Title:  

Initial Term: 60 Months Date 

AGREEMENT 

This INDUSTRIAL WASTE & DISPOSAL SERVICES AGREEMENT, consisting of the terms and conditions set forth herein, and Exhibit A, and/or Confirmation Letter(s) and the Profile Sheet(s) entered 
into from and after the date hereof from time to time (all of the foregoing being collectively referred to as the “Agreement”), is made as of the Effective Date shown above by and between the Customer 
named above, on its and its subsidiaries and affiliates behalf (collectively, “Customer”) and the Waste Management entity named above (“the Company”).   

TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

1. SERVICES PROVIDED. The Company and/or its affiliates will provide Customer with 
collection, management, transportation, disposal, treatment and recycling services (“Services”) for 
Customer’s non-hazardous Solid Waste, Special Waste, Hazardous Waste, and/or Recyclables, as 
described on Exhibit A and/or Confirmation Letter(s) and/or applicable Profile Sheets (collectively 
“Industrial Waste”). All Industrial Waste that is generated, handled and/or collected by Customer shall 
be managed exclusively by Company during the term of this Agreement. “Solid Waste” means garbage, 
refuse and rubbish including those which are recyclable but excluding Special Waste and Hazardous 
Waste. “Special Waste” includes polychlorinated biphenyl (“PCB”) wastes, industrial process wastes, 
asbestos containing material, petroleum contaminated soils, treated/de-characterized wastes, 
incinerator ash, medical wastes, demolition debris and other materials requiring special handling in 
accordance with any applicable federal, state, provincial or local laws or regulations. “Hazardous 
Waste” means any hazardous, toxic, or radioactive substances, as such terms are defined by any 
applicable federal, state, provincial or local laws or regulations.  “Nonconforming Waste” means waste 
that (a) is not in conformance with waste descriptions given by Customer under this Agreement, in an 
Exhibit A, Confirmation Letter(s) or the Profile Sheet incorporated herein; (b) is prohibited from being 
received, managed or disposed of at a transfer, storage or disposal facility used hereunder by federal, 
state or local law, regulation, ordinance, permit or other legal requirement; (c) is non-hazardous Solid 
Waste that contains regulated Special Waste or Hazardous Waste; (d) is or contains any infectious 
waste, radioactive, volatile, corrosive, flammable, explosive, biomedical, biohazardous material, 
regulated medical or hazardous waste or toxic substances, as defined pursuant to or listed or regulated 
under applicable federal, state or local law, except as stated on Exhibit A, the Profile Sheet or 
Confirmation Letter; or (e) contains information protected by federal, state or local privacy or data 
security laws, including but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
as amended (“HIPAA”).   

2. CUSTOMER WARRANTIES. Customer hereby represents and warrants that all Industrial 
Waste collected by or delivered to the Company shall be in accordance with waste descriptions given 
in this Agreement and shall not be or contain any Nonconforming Waste. When the Company handles 
Special or Hazardous Waste for Customer, Customer will provide the Company with a Generator's 
Waste Profile Sheet (“Profile Sheet”) describing all Special or Hazardous Waste, and provide a 
representative sample of such waste on request. In the event this Agreement includes transportation by 
the Company, Customer shall, at the time of tender, provide to the Company accurate and complete 
documents, shipping papers or manifests as are required for the lawful transfer of the Industrial Waste 
under all applicable federal, state or local laws or regulations. Tender or delivery shall be considered 
nonconforming if not in accordance with this Section.  Customer further represents and warrants that it 
will comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, permits or other legal requirements 
applicable to the Industrial Waste. Customer shall provide the Company and its Subcontractors a safe 
work environment for Services performed on any premises owned or controlled by Customer. 

3. TERM OF AGREEMENT; RIGHT TO PROVIDE COMPETING OFFERS. The Initial Term of 
this Agreement shall be as set forth above and if no such term is set forth above, it shall be 60 months, 
commencing on the Effective Date set forth above. This Agreement shall automatically renew thereafter 
for additional terms of twelve (12) months each (“Renewal Term”, with “Initial Term,” collectively, the 
“Term”) unless either party gives to the other party written notice of termination thirty (30) days prior to 
the termination of the then-existing term; provided however, that the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, in accordance with its terms, with respect to any 
uncompleted or unfinished Services provided for in an Exhibit A, Confirmation Letter and/or Profile Sheet 
until such Services are completed.  Notice of termination received at any other time will be considered 
ineffective and the Agreement will be considered automatically renewed upon completion of the then-
existing term. If Customer receives an offer from (or makes any offer to) a third party relating to such 
third party’s provision to the Customer of the same or similar Services to those provided hereunder, 
Customer shall give Company prompt written notice of any such offer and a 15-day period to respond 
to such third party offer prior to Customer agreeing to such third party offer.  

4. INSPECTION; REJECTION OF WASTE. Title to and liability for Nonconforming Waste 
shall remain with Customer at all times. Company shall have the right to inspect, analyze or test any 
waste delivered by Customer. If Customer’s Industrial Waste is Nonconforming Waste, Company can, at 
its option, reject Nonconforming Waste and return it to Customer or require Customer to remove and 
dispose of the Nonconforming Waste at Customer’s expense. Customer shall indemnify, hold harmless 
(in accordance with Section 9) and pay or reimburse Company for any and all costs, damages 
and/or fines incurred as a result of or relating to Customer's tender or delivery of Nonconforming 

Waste or other failure to comply or conform to this Agreement, including costs of inspection, testing 
and analysis. Company also may impose volume limitations on inbound deliveries reject any Industrial 
Waste that could adversely impact the receiving facility, or Company may terminate the Agreement or 
the applicable Exhibit A related to such Industrial Waste. 

5. SPECIAL HANDLING; TITLE. If Company elects to handle, rather than reject, 
Nonconforming Waste, Company shall have the right to manage the same in the manner deemed most 
appropriate by Company given the characteristics of the Nonconforming Waste. Company may assess 
and Customer shall pay additional charges associated with delivery of Nonconforming Waste, including, 
but not limited to, special handling or disposal charges, and costs associated with different quantities 
of waste, different delivery dates, modifications in operations, specialized equipment, and other 
operational, environmental, health, safety or regulatory requirements. Title to and ownership of 
acceptable Industrial Waste shall transfer to Company upon its final acceptance of such waste.  

6. COMPANY WARRANTIES. Company hereby represents and warrants that: (a) Company 
will manage the Industrial Waste in a safe and workmanlike manner in full compliance with all valid and 
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, orders, rules and regulations; and (b) it will use 
disposal and recycling facilities that have been issued permits, licenses, certificates or approvals 
required by valid and applicable laws, ordinances and regulations necessary to allow the facility to 
accept, treat and/or dispose of Industrial Waste. Except as provided herein, Company makes no other 
warranties and hereby disclaims any other warranty, whether implied or statutory. 

7. LIMITED LICENSE TO ENTER. When a Customer is transporting Industrial Waste to a 
Company facility, Customer and its subcontractors shall have a limited license to enter a disposal facility 
for the sole purpose of off-loading Industrial Waste at an area designated, and in the manner directed, 
by Company. Customer shall, and shall ensure that its subcontractors, comply with all rules and 
regulations of the facility, as amended. Company may reject Industrial Waste, deny Customer or its 
subcontractors entry to its facility and/or terminate this Agreement in the event of Customer’s or its 
subcontractors’ failure to follow such rules and regulations. 

8. CHARGES AND PAYMENTS. Customer shall pay the rates (“Charges”) set forth on Exhibit A 
or a Confirmation Letter, which may be modified as provided in this Agreement. Company reserves the 
right, and Customer acknowledges that it should expect Company to increase or add Charges payable 
by Customer hereunder during the Term. The rates may be adjusted by Company to account for: any 
changes or modifications to, or differences between, the actual equipment and Services provided by 
Company to Customer and those specified on Exhibit A; any increase in or to recoup all or any portion 
of, disposal, transportation, processing and fuel costs or environmental compliance fees or costs, or 
recovery of  the Company’s and affiliates’ costs associated with host community fees, waste disposal 
taxes and similar charges paid to municipal or other governmental authorities or agencies to engage in 
recycling and waste collection, transfer, processing, disposal and treatment; any change in the 
composition, amount or weight of the Industrial Waste collected by Company from Customer’s service 
location(s) from what is specified on Exhibit A (including for container overages or overflows) of the 
Industrial Waste;  increased costs due to uncontrollable circumstances, including, without limitation, 
changes (occurring from and after three (3) months prior to the Effective Date) in local, state, federal or 
foreign laws or regulations, (or the enforcement, interpretation or application thereof), including the 
imposition of or increase in taxes, fees or surcharges, or acts of God such as floods, fires, hurricanes 
and natural disasters.  Company also reserves the right to charge Customer additional charges for 
Services provided by Company to Customer, whether requested or incurred by Customer, including, but 
not limited to, dig out, minimum load charges, profile approval charges, all at such rates that Company 
is charging its customers at such time  The Company may also increase the charges by an amount 
equal to the average percentage increase for the previous twelve-month period in the Consumer Price 
Index for Water & Sewer & Trash Collection Services, as published by the U.S. Department of Labor, 
with the amount of the increase based on the most current information available from the U.S. 
Department of Labor 30 days prior to the date of the increase, unless the parties have otherwise agreed 
to a different CPI as stated in an Exhibit A. Without limiting the foregoing, Company also reserves the 
right to adjust all pricing provided in an Exhibit A at any time with ten (10 days’ advance written notice 
to Customer. Changes to the Charges payable under this Agreement may be agreed to orally, in writing 
or by other actions and practices of the parties, including, without limitation, electronic or online 
acceptance or payment of the invoice reflecting such changes, and written notice to Customer of any 
such changes and Customer’s failure to object to such changes, which shall be deemed to be 
Customer’s affirmative consent to such changes. Increases to Charges as specified in this Section may 
be applied singularly or cumulatively and may include an amount for Company's operating or profit 

38



 

© Waste Management (Form Update: 07-2019) Page 2 of 2 ISA City of Baraboo 01.01.2020July 12, 2019 
 

margin. Customer acknowledges and agrees that any increased Charges under this section are not 
represented to be solely an offset or pass through of Company’s costs. All rate adjustments as provided 
above and in Section 5 shall take effect upon notification from Company to Customer. Customer 
shall pay the rates in full within thirty ( 30) days of the invoice date. 

Company shall send all invoices for Charges and any required notices to Customer under this 
Agreement to Customer’s billing address specified at the top of the Agreement.  Unless specifically 
agreed to in writing by Company and subject to such additional costs that Company may charge, in its 
discretion, Company shall not be required to bill Customer using Customer’s or any third party billing 
portal or program.  In no event shall the use by Company of Customer’s or any third party billing portal 
or program, or any terms thereof, operate to amend or supplement the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, which will remain binding in accordance with its terms. Customer shall pay all invoiced 
Charges within thirty (30) days of the invoice date, by check mailed to Company’s payment address on 
Customer’s invoice. Payment by any other method or channel, including in person, online or by phone, 
shall be as allowed by Company and subject to applicable convenience fees and other costs charged 
by Company, from time to time. Any Customer invoice balance not paid within thirty (30) days of the 
date of invoice is subject to a late charge, and any Customer check returned for insufficient funds is 
subject to a non-sufficient funds charge, both to the maximum extent allowed by applicable law. 
Customer acknowledges that any late charge charged by Company is not to be considered as interest 
on debt or a finance charge, and is a reasonable charge for the anticipated loss and cost to Company 
for late payment. If payment is not made when due, Company retains the right to suspend Services until 
the past due balance is paid in full. In addition to full payment of outstanding balances, Customer shall 
be required to pay a reactivation charge to resume suspended Services. If Services are suspended for 
more than fifteen (15) days, Company may immediately terminate this Agreement for default and recover 
any equipment and all amounts owed hereunder, including liquidated damages under Section 14.    

9. INDEMNIFICATION. The Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save Customer harmless 
from and against any and all liability (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) which Customer may be 
responsible for or pay out as a result of bodily injuries (including death), property damage, or any 
violation or alleged violation of law, to the extent caused by Company’s breach of this Agreement or by 
any negligent act, negligent omission or willful misconduct of the Company or its employees, which 
occurs (1) during the collection or transportation of Customer’s Industrial Waste by Company, or (2) as 
a result of the disposal of Customer’s Industrial Waste, after the date of this Agreement, in a facility 
owned by a subsidiary or affiliate of the Company provided that the Company’s indemnification 
obligations will not apply to occurrences involving Nonconforming Waste. 

Customer agrees to indemnify, defend and save the Company harmless from and against any and all 
liability (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) which the Company may be responsible for or pay out as 
a result of bodily injuries (including death), property damage, or any violation or alleged violation of law 
to the extent caused by Customer’s breach of this Agreement or by any negligent act, negligent omission 
or willful misconduct of the Customer or its employees, agents or contractors in the performance of this 
Agreement or Customer’s use, operation or possession of any equipment furnished by the Company. 

Neither party shall be liable to the other for consequential, incidental or punitive damages arising out of 
the performance of this Agreement except for third party claims related to violations of law. 

10. UNCONTROLLABLE CIRCUMSTANCES. Except for the obligation to make payments 
hereunder, neither party shall be in default for its failure to perform or delay in performance caused by 
events beyond its reasonable control, including, but not limited to, strikes, riots, imposition of laws or 
governmental orders, fires, acts of God, and inability to obtain equipment, permit changes and 
regulations, restrictions (including land use) therein, and the affected party shall be excused from 
performance during the occurrence of such events. 

11. RECYCLING SERVICES.  The following shall apply to fiber and non-fiber recyclables 
(“Recyclable Materials”) and recycling services: All Recyclable Materials must be clean, dry, 
unshredded, empty, loose and unbagged. (a)(i) Single stream Recyclable Materials (“Single Stream”) 
will consist of Customer’s entire volume of uncoated office and writing paper, magazines, pamphlets, 
mail, newspaper; flattened, uncoated cardboard, paperboard boxes; aluminum food and beverage 
containers, tin or steel cans; glass, and rigid container plastics #1, #2 and #5, including narrow neck 
containers and tubs.   Any material not specifically set forth above, including but not limited to foam, film 
plastics, plastic bags, napkins, tissue, paper towels, or paper that has been in contact with food, is 
unacceptable. Glass may not be accepted at all locations. (ii) Customer shall provide source-separated 
wastepaper, cardboard, plastics and metals in accordance with the most current ISRI Scrap 
Specifications Circular and any amendments thereto or replacements thereof.  (iii) All other Recyclable 
Materials will be delivered in accordance with industry standards or such specifications communicated 
to Customer by the Company from time-to-time. (iv) the Company reserves the right, upon notice to 
Customer, to discontinue acceptance of any category of Recyclable Materials set forth above as a result 
of market conditions related to such materials and makes no representations as to the recyclability of 
the materials. Collected Recyclable Materials for which no commercially reasonable market exists may 
be landfilled at Customer’s Cost; (b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, 
Recyclable Materials may not contain Nonconforming Waste, Hazardous Waste, Special Waste or other 
materials that are deleterious or capable of causing material damage to any part of the Company’s 
property, its personnel or the public or materially impair the strength or the durability of the Company’s 
structures or equipment. (c) the Company may reject in whole or in part, or may process, in its sole 
discretion, Recyclable Materials not meeting the specifications. Customer shall pay the Company for all 
increased costs, losses and expenses incurred with respect to such non-conforming Recyclable 
Materials which charges may include an amount for the Company’s operating or profit margin 
(collectively the “Cost”). Without limiting the foregoing, and Customer shall pay a contamination charge 
for additional handling, processing, transporting and/or disposing of such non-conforming Recyclable 
Materials, Hazardous Waste, Special Waste, Nonconforming Waste, and/or all of part of non-conforming 
loads and additional charges may be assessed for bulky items such as appliances, concrete, furniture, 
mattresses, tires, electronics, pallets, yard waste, propane tanks, etc.; (d) Recycling Services are subject 
to a Recyclable Material Offset (RMO) charge to the extent that (a) the Company’s processing cost per 
ton, including costs of disposal for contamination and profit margin, exceeds (b) an amount equal to 
recyclables value per ton minus an amount for profit margin. The RMO charge, including profit margin, 
processing and disposal costs and recyclable value shall be determined by the Company from time-to-
time, in its sole discretion, based on applicable operating data and market information. If recyclables 
value exceeds processing costs, plus profit margin, a RMO credit may apply, at the Company’s sole 
discretion. 

12. ASSIGNMENT & SUBCONTRACTING. This Agreement shall be binding on and shall 
inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and assigns. Customer acknowledges 
and agrees that the Company may utilize unaffiliated subcontractors that are not affiliates of Company 
to provide the Services to Customer. Customer may not broker the disposal of Industrial Waste through 
third parties under this Agreement without Company’s express written consent. 

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement and its exhibits and attachments represent the 
entire understanding and agreement between the parties relating to the Services and supersedes any 
and all prior agreements, whether written or oral, between the parties regarding the same; provided that, 
the terms of any national service agreement or lease agreement for compactors or specialty equipment 
between the parties shall govern over any inconsistent terms herein. 

14. TERMINATION; LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. Company may immediately terminate this 
Agreement, (a) in the event of Customer’s breach of any term or provision of this Agreement, including 
failure to pay on a timely basis, or (b) if Customer becomes insolvent, the subject of an order for relief 
in bankruptcy, receivership, reorganization dissolution, or similar law, or makes an assignment for the 
benefit of its creditors or if Company deems itself insecure as to payment (“Default”). Notice of 
termination shall be in writing and deemed given when delivered in person or by certified mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested. In the event Customer terminates this Agreement prior to the 
expiration of the Initial or Renewal Term (“Term”) for any reason other than as set forth in Section 3, or 
in the event Company terminates this Agreement for Customer's default, Customer shall pay the 
following liquidated damages in addition to the Company's legal fees, if any: (a) if the remaining Term 
(including any applicable Renewal Term) under this Agreement is six (6) or more months, Customer 
shall pay the average of its six (6) most recent monthly Charges (or, if the Effective Date is within six (6) 
months of  Company’s  last invoice date, the average of all monthly Charges) multiplied by six (6); or (b) 
if the remaining Term under this Agreement is less than six (6) months, Customer shall pay the average 
of its six (6) most recent monthly Charges multiplied by the number of months remaining in the Term. 
Customer shall pay liquidated damages of $100 for every Customer waste tire that is found at the 
disposal facility. Customer acknowledges that the actual damage to Company in the event of termination 
is impractical or extremely difficult to fix or prove, and the foregoing liquidated damages amount is 
reasonable and commensurate with the anticipated loss to Company resulting from such termination 
and is an agreed upon charge and is not imposed as a penalty. Collection of liquidated damages by 
Company shall be in addition to any rights or remedies available to Company under this Agreement or 
at law. In addition to and not in limitation of the foregoing, Company shall be entitled to recover all losses, 
damages and costs, including attorneys’ fees and costs, resulting from Customer’s breach of any other 
provision of this Agreement in addition to all other remedies available at law or in equity. 

15. EQUIPMENT. All equipment furnished by Company shall remain its property; however 
Customer shall have care, custody and control of the equipment and shall be liable for all loss or damage 
to the equipment and for its contents while at Customer's service location(s) or otherwise under its care, 
custody and control.  Customer will not overload, move or alter the equipment, or allow a third party to 
do so, and shall use it only for its intended purpose.  At the termination of this Agreement, Company’s 
equipment shall be in the condition in which it was provided, normal wear and tear excepted. Customer 
shall provide safe and unobstructed access to the equipment on the scheduled collection day. Company 
may suspend Services or terminate this Agreement in the event Customer violates any of the 
requirements of this provision. Customer shall pay, if charged by Company, any additional Charges, 
determined by Company in its sole discretion, for overloading, moving or altering the equipment or 
allowing a third party to do so, and for any service modifications caused by or resulting from Customer's 
failure to provide access. Customer warrants that Customer's property is sufficient to bear the weight of 
Company's equipment and vehicles and agrees that Company shall not be responsible for any damage 
to Customer's pavement or any other surface resulting from the equipment or Services. 

16. CONFIDENTIALITY.  Except as required by law, the parties agree that the rates set forth on 
Exhibit A, a Confirmation Letter, including any adjustments thereto, and any other pricing information 
shall be considered confidential and shall not be disclosed to third parties without the other party’s 
written approval. 

17. MISCELLANEOUS. (a) The prevailing party will be entitled to recover reasonable fees 
and court costs, including attorneys' and expert fees, in enforcing this Agreement. In the event Customer 
fails to pay Company all amounts due hereunder, Company will be entitled to collect all reasonable 
collection costs or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ and expert fees, court costs or handling 
fees for returned checks from Customer; (b) The validity, interpretation and performance of this 
Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the law of the state in which the Services are 
performed; (c) If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid or unenforceable, then such 
provision shall be deemed severable from and shall not affect the remainder of this Agreement, which 
shall remain in full force and effect; (d) Customer’s payment obligation for Services and the Warranties 
and Indemnification made by each party shall survive termination of this Agreement; (e) this Agreement 
shall supersede and replace any prior Agreements related to the same services and all prior related 
Exhibit As, Confirmation Letters and Profiles Sheets in effect shall be incorporated by reference into this 
Agreement. 

39



 

© Waste Management, Inc. (rev. 2/2003)   Exhibit A - INDUSTRIAL WASTE & DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 
 

 

INDUSTRIAL WASTE & DISPOSAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT  Exhibit A 

 
 

CUSTOMER INFORMATION 
 

City of Baraboo 

101 South Blvd. 

Baraboo, WI  53913-2941 

Contact Name:  Tom Pinion, Director of 
Public Works/City Engineer 
tpinion@cityofbaraboo.com  

Contact Phone:  608-355-7304 

 

GENERATOR INFORMATION 
(If different from Customer Information) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROFILE NUMBER:   

DISPOSAL FACILITY:  Lake Delton Transfer 
Station 

EXPIRATION DATE:   

PO NUMBER:   

 

Service 
Information 

Material / Ticket Description Anticipated Volume Rate / UOM / Minimum 

 
Disposal 

 
Municipal Solid Waste  

  
$63.66 per ton  

 
Taxes/Fees 

 
All applicable taxes and fees will also be charged - 
Currently $13.00 per ton – This rate will be adjusted to 
reflect any changes in the taxes and fees. 

    
$13.00 per ton 

Digout (frozen load):  $60.00/load 

 

  

 
Additional 

Information/Special 
Handling:  

 
 
 
 

- The disposal rates shall be increased each year on the anniversary of the date of this Agreement by the 12-month 
rolling average percentage change in the Water, Sewer, Trash Collection Consumer Price Index (WST CPI) with a 3% 
maximum increase. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THE WORK CONTEMPLATED BY THIS EXHIBIT A IS TO BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF THE INDUSTRIAL WASTE & DISPOSAL SERVICES AGREEMENT OR OTHER CONTRACTUAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES DATED: January 1, 2020             

 
COMPANY Waste Management of Wisconsin, Inc.    CUSTOMER City of Baraboo 

 
  

By:     Signature:         

Name:   Date  Name:   Date 

Title     Title:    

 
 

40

mailto:tpinion@cityofbaraboo.com
mailto:tpinion@cityofbaraboo.com


 
EXHIBIT A 

RECYCLING SERVICES 
To the Industrial Waste Services & Disposal Agreement 

Between 
City of Baraboo WI 

And 
Waste Management of Wisconsin, Inc.  

 
1. QUANTITY AND QUALITY: 
During the term of the Agreement, Company shall take and Customer agrees to provide one hundred percent (100%) of Customer’s Single Stream recyclables 
collected during daily operations to S2439 Highway 12, Lake Delton, WI 53940 (“Lake Delton T/S”).  Customer shall provide Single Stream recyclables in 
accordance to the specifications as set forth in Exhibit R-1. 
 
2. RECYCLABLE VALUE: 
The value of the Single Stream recyclables meeting the Specifications shall be eighty percent (80%) of the Company’s Net Sale Price per ton for each commodity 
contained in the Single Stream. “Net Sale Price” shall mean the amount equal to the average revenue received or charges paid by the Company’s processing 
facility, for each commodity for Single Stream processed the month prior to delivery, less any freight costs paid by Company. It shall be conclusively presumed 
that the composition of the Single Stream delivered to the Company shall be identical to the composition of all single stream Single Stream processed by Company, 
as established from time to time by Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Company may perform a composition study of the Single Stream to determine the 
composition percentage of each commodity for the Single Stream and may revise the Net Sale Price payable to Customer to reflect the actual composition of 
Customer’s Single Stream. Customer acknowledges that the value of the Single Stream may be negative.   
 
3. PAYMENTS; CHARGES:   
Customer shall pay for the services mentioned herein as adjusted over the term of the Agreement as noted hereunder, upon receipt of Company’s invoice. Where 
the value is positive, Company shall pay Customer on or about the last day of each month for Single Stream purchased during the preceding month, after deduction 
of any Charges owed to Company by Customer for services performed hereunder. State and Local taxes, if applicable, will also be added.  
 
4. ADJUSTMENTS: 
The initial transfer and processing fee (“Transfer/Processing Fee”) for the Single Stream is $120.00 per delivered ton.  

 
5. RATE INCREASES:   
The Company has the right to adjust the Transfer/Processing Fee in accordance with increases in the applicable CPI as calculated below on the anniversary of 
the Effective Date (“Anniversary Date”). Such CPI adjustment shall be effective on such Anniversary Date and shall be recalculated and effective each Anniversary 
Date thereafter. The increases to the Processing Fee shall be based on the percentage increase in the CPI for the twelve (12) month period ending one month 
prior to the Anniversary Date.  “CPI” means the Consumer Price Index-All Urban Consumers (CPI-U), Water, Sewer, and Trash Collection (WST), (Not Seasonally 
Adjusted, 12-month rolling average) as published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (1982-1984=100), however the annual CPI 
adjustment shall not exceed four percent (4%) in a given year. In the event this CPI is no longer viable or no longer reflective of consumer prices in Customer’s 
geographic region, another consumer pricing index or method of adjustment may be used as a replacement for the CPI, subject to the mutual agreement of the 
parties. 

6. SERVICE: 
Customer shall deliver Single Stream, at Customer’s expense, to Company’s Lake Delton T/S during the facility’s normal operating hours excluding weekends and 
holidays as specified by the Facility. 

 
 

COMPANY:                                                                  CUSTOMER: 
Waste Management of Wisconsin, Inc.                  CITY OF BARABOO, WISCONSIN 
 
Signature:_____________________________                            Signature:______________________________ 
 
Name:_________________________________                            Name__________________________________ 
 
Title:___________________________________                           Title:___________________________________ 
 
Date:__________________________________                          Date:___________________________________ 
 

 
  

41



 

 

EXHIBIT R-1 

SINGLE STREAM RECYCLABLES SPECIFICATIONS 
 

RECYCLABLES must be dry, loose (not bagged), unshredded, empty, and include ONLY the following: 
 

NON-RECYCLABLES include, but are not limited to the following: 

Plastic bags and bagged materials (even if 
containing Recyclables) 

Microwavable trays 

 Porcelain and ceramics Mirrors, window or auto glass 

Light bulbs Coated cardboard 

Soiled paper, including paper plates, cups and 
pizza boxes 

Plastics not listed above including but not limited to those with 
symbols #3, #4, #6, #7 and unnumbered plastics, including utensils 

Expanded polystyrene Coat hangers 

Glass and metal cookware/bakeware  Household appliances and electronics  

Hoses, cords, wires  Yard waste, construction debris, and wood 

Flexible plastic or film packaging and multi-
laminated materials 

Needles, syringes, IV bags or other medical supplies 

Food waste and liquids, containers containing 
such items 

Textiles, cloth, or any fabric (bedding, pillows, sheets, etc.) 

Excluded Materials or containers which contained 
Excluded Materials 

Napkins, paper towels, tissue, paper plates, and paper cups 

Any paper Recyclables or pieces of paper 
Recyclables less than 4” in size in any dimension 

Propane tanks, fuel cannisters  

Batteries  

 
DELIVERY SPECIFICATIONS: 
Material delivered by or on behalf of Customer may not contain Non-Recyclables or Excluded Materials. “Excluded Materials” means 
radioactive, volatile, corrosive, flammable, explosive, biomedical, infectious, bio-hazardous or toxic substance or material, or regulated 
medical or hazardous waste as defined by, characterized or listed under applicable federal, state, or local laws or regulations, materials 
containing information (in hard copy or electronic format, or otherwise) which information is protected or regulated under any local, 
state or federal privacy or data security laws, including, but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
1996, as amended, or other regulations or ordinances or other materials that are deleterious or capable of causing material damage to 
any part of Company's property, its personnel or the public or materially impair the strength or the durability of Company's structures or 
equipment. 
 
Company may reject in whole or in part, or may process, in its sole discretion, Recyclables not meeting the specifications, including wet 
materials, and Customer shall pay Company for all increased costs, losses and expenses incurred with respect to such non-conforming 
Recyclables including costs for handling, processing, transporting and/or disposing of such non-conforming Recyclable Materials which 
charges may include an amount for Company's operating or profit margin (collectively the “Cost”). Without limiting the foregoing, and 
Customer shall pay a contamination charge for additional handling, processing, transporting and/or disposing of Non-Recyclables, 
Excluded Materials, and/or all or part of non-conforming loads and additional charges may be assessed for bulky items such as 
appliances, concrete, furniture, mattresses, tires, electronics, pallets, yard waste, propane tanks, etc.   

Company reserves the right upon notice to discontinue acceptance of any category of Recyclables set forth above as a result of market 
conditions related to such materials and makes no representations as to the recyclability of the materials.  Collected Recyclables for 
which no commercially reasonable market exists may be landfilled at Customer’s Cost.   
 
V7 May 2019 

Aluminum cans  Newspaper 

PET bottles with the symbol #1 – with screw tops 
only  

Mail 

HDPE plastic bottles with the symbol #2 (milk, 
water bottles detergent, and shampoo bottles, 
etc.)  

Uncoated paperboard (ex. cereal boxes; food and snack boxes) 

PP plastic bottles and tubs with symbol # 5 - 
empty 

Uncoated printing, writing and office paper 

Steel and tin cans  Old corrugated containers/cardboard (uncoated) 

Glass food and beverage containers – brown, 
clear, or green  

Magazines, glossy inserts and pamphlets 

42



N BR - 6
RE SO L UTIO N N O .2019- D ated:September24,2019

TheC ityof B araboo,W isconsin

B ackground Jaren andRhonda P archem,w ho resideat propertyon thesouth sideof C anepa
Street,recentlypurchasedthevacant 6.12-acreparcelat thew est endC anepa Street.Theyhope
to subdividethat propertyandcreateupto six buildablelotson that vacant land.

C urrently,theC anepa Street right-of-w ayisan unimprovedright-of-w ayw ith onlyan apparent
privategraveldrivew ayin theright-of-w ay.In orderto developthisnew subdivision,sanitary
sew er,w atermain,storm sew er,curb& gutter,sidew alk,graveland pavement areallincluded
in thelist of requiredimprovementspursuant to theC ity’sSubdivision andP lattingordinance.
In theabsenceof theseimprovements,anypropertyow nermaypetition theC ityto installthese
improvementsandassessthecost to thebenefittingpropertyow ners,w hich istheprocessthe
P archemsarepursuing.TheC itymay:

A . Grant thepetition andinstalltherequestedimprovements:

 C ityE ngineeringw oulddeveloptheplansandcorrespondingcost estimatesand
follow thestatutoryprocedureforlevyingspecialassessments,w hich includesa
requisitepublichearing.

 Thecost to theC ityw ouldbeapproximately $160,000andw illneedto bebudgeted
forbytheC ityaccordingly. TheC ityw ould then recoupitscostsasa Special
A ssessment leviedto thebenefitingpropertyow ners.

B . D eclineto grant thepetition:

 TheP archemsw ould need to enterinto a D evelopment A greement w ith the
C ity,w hichistheprocessthat hasbeen follow edon themost recent subdivision
in B araboo.The A greement requiresthe developer to install the required
improvementsto theC ity’sstandards,entirelyat theircost.If propertyother
than thedeveloper’spropertybenefitsfrom anyof therequiredimprovements,
provisionscould beincluded in theA greement w herebytheC ityw ould collect
thesecostsbylevyingspecialassessmentsandreimbursethedeveloperfortheir
initialex pense.

A t thelast P ublicSafetyC ommitteemeeting,themembersrecommendedthat C ouncilgrant the
P archem’spetition,pursuant to O ption A ,above. TheC ityC ouncilmaytakeaction to:

A . A pprovetherecommendation of theP ublicSafetyC ommitteeto grant theP archem’s
petition anddirect staff to taketheappropriatenex t steps(w hich w illincludingdrafting
a P reliminaryResolution forC ounciland budgeting fortheanticipated costsfor2020
or2021),

B . D enytherecommendation of theP ublicSafetyC ommittee,or
C . Takeanyotheraction theC ouncilmaydeem appropriate.

FiscalN ote:( one) [x ]N ot Required [ ]B udgetedE xpenditure [ ]N ot B udgeted
C omments:

43



W H ER EA S,the Parchems, residing on the property on the south side of Canepa Street,
recently purchased the vacant 6.12-acre parcel at the west end Canepa Street, and hope to
subdivide that property and create as many as six buildable lots on that vacant land; and

W H ER EA S, the Parchems have petitioned the City to pay for and install the
improvements on the currently unimproved Canepa Street right-of-way for the purpose of
creating a subdivision on the vacant land at the end of Canepa Street, and

N O W ,T H ER EFO R E,BE IT R ESO L V ED that the Common Council hereby
[approves/denies]the petition of Jaren and Rhonda Parchem and takes the additional following
action [direct staff to tak e the appropriate next steps for the required prelim inary
resolution/directs staff to work with the Parchem s with their developm ent plan/other
action].

O fferedby: Public Safety Committee A pproved:
M otion:
Second: A ttest:

44



Va
ca

nt
 6

.1
2-

ac
re

 P
ar

ce
l

D

Pa
rc

he
m

s'
R

es
id

en
ce

45



S:\Council\Ordinances\9-24-19 Karla Joshua Reinhardt LC PUD Ord at 1208 9th Street.docx

NBO - 1

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: Karla and Josh Reinhardt are in the process of purchasing the property at 1208 9th

Street (formerly D&S Dental Lab) in hopes of converting it to a Family Day Care Center. Josh
currently operates a family day care center from their 3rd Avenue home. They would like to move
the family day care center out of their home and determined that the subject property would suit
their needs. The have reportedly met with the State’s licensing representative who determined that
this property complies with the applicable regulations. Since a day care center is neither a permitted
nor conditional use in the long list of allowable uses in a B-3 Highway Oriented Business zoning
district, a Planned Development Overlay is worthy of consideration.

Since this is an existing developed site, there is no requirement for a formal Site Plan, Storm Water
Management Plan, Site Lighting Plan, or Landscaping Plan. However, the applicants have provided
a plan to improve the existing landscaping on the site.

The Plan Commission reviewed the GDP and the SIP for this project at their August 20th meeting
and voted unanimously to forward the GDP & SIP to the Council for rezoning with a favorable
recommendation to approve it.

Fiscal Note: (check one) [x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted Comments:

THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARABOO, WISCONSIN, DOES
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

1. Section 17.18(4)(d), Code of Ordinances, is amended as follows:

17.18 ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS AND INCORPORATION OF
ZONING DISTRICT MAP

(4) DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AND MAP AMENDMENTS.

(d) Planned Unit Developments. The following Planned Unit Development is
approved and incorporated into the zoning map: 2019-02.

2. The attached General Development Plan/Specific Implementation Plan is approved as
Planned Unit Development 2019-02.

3. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as provided by law and have an
effective date commensurate with the sale of said property.

Mayor’s Approval: ________________________

Clerk’s Certification: ________________________

I hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly passed by the Common Council of the
City of Baraboo on the 8th day of October 2019, and is recorded on page ___ of volume ___.

City Clerk: _________________________

46



S:\Council\Ordinances\9-24-19 Karla Joshua Reinhardt LC PUD Ord at 1208 9th Street.docx

GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN / SPECIFIC IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR THE
PROPERTY AT 1208 9th STREET IN THE CITY OF BARABOO, SAUK COUNTY,

WISCONSIN, TO BE ZONED AS A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

Karla A & Joshua M Reinhardt, d/b/a Karla A and Joshua M Reinhardt LC, are the owners

of the property at 1208 9th Street, have requested that the property be rezoned as a Planned Unit

Development (PUD) under the City of Baraboo’s Zoning Code upon the following General Development

Plan submitted for approval pursuant to §17.36B(7), of the Baraboo Code of Ordinances:

1. The real property involved in this General Development Plan (GDP) consists of that property

located at 1208 9th Street, as shown on the location map attached as Exhibit A and made a part

hereof.

Tax Parcel 206-0330-20000

Lands located in the fractional SE ¼ of the NE ¼, Section 32, T12N, R6E City of Baraboo, Sauk
County, Wisconsin described as follows:

Beginning at the NW Corner of Sauk County Certified Survey Map No. 1236; thence north 140.44
feet to the south line of 9th Street; thence East along the south line of 9th Street 67.37 feet, thence
South 140.44 feet; thence West 67.37 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Said lands contain 0.217 acres, more or less.

2. The existing 0.217-acre property covered by this PUD has one existing building that was formerly

occupied as a professional office (D & S Dental Lab).

3. The property is presently zoned B-3 Highway Oriented Business. The specific intention of the

petitioner is to convert the existing structure to a Family Day Care Center with a maximum of

eight (8) children.

4. The GDP is also accepted as the Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) for use as a Family Day Care

Center in accordance with the development plans approved by the Baraboo Plan Commission on

August 20, 2019.

5. Signs upon the property shall be allowed pursuant to Subchapter III – Sign Code in Section 17.80

of the City’s Zoning Code.

6. The terms of the GDP/SIP shall be covenants running with the land, and applicable not only to

the petitioner, but also to any and all subsequent owners as well.

47



48



49



S:\C ouncil\O rdinances\9-24-19Park ing R egulationO rd 7.02(2).docx

N B O –3

TheC ityof B araboo,W isconsin

B ackground: TheP ublicSafetyC ommitteeconsidered severalrequeststo restrict parkingon the
north sideof 9th A venuebetw een O akStreet andB irch Street at theirA ugust 23rd,2019meeting.

B asedon recommendationsfrom theC ityE ngineerandC hief of P olice,theC ommitteeunanimously
recommendedthat theC ommon C ouncilapprovethischange.

FiscalN ote:(check one) [x ]N ot Requ ired [ ]B udgetedE x penditure [ ]N ot B udgeted Comments:

A n O rdinancerevisingtheC ityof B araboo C odeof O rdinances§7.02(2)(b)2to providefor:

a. N o P arking A nyTimeon thenorth sideof 9th A venuebetw een O ak Street and B irch
Street.

TH E C O M M O N C O UN C IL O F TH E C ITY O F B A RA B O O , W ISC O N SIN , D O
O RD A IN A S FO L L O W S:

1. TheC ityof B araboo C odeof O rdinances§7.02(2)(b)2,theO fficialTrafficM ap,isrevisedto
providefor:
a. N o P arking A nyTimeon thenorth sideof 9th A venuebetw een O ak Street and B irch

Street.

2. ThisO rdinanceshalltakeeffect upon passageandpublication asprovidedbylaw .

M ayor’sA pproval: ________________________

C lerk’sC ertification: ________________________

Iherebycertifythat theforegoingO rdinancew asdulypassedbytheC ommon C ouncilof the
C ityof B araboo on the9th dayof O ctober,2019andisrecordedon page____of volume___.

C ityC lerk: _________________________

50



N B O -4

T he City ofB araboo,W isconsin

B ack ground: A t thelast P ublicSafetyC ommitteemeeting,theC ommitteevoted unanimouslyto
recommendthat theC ounciladopt an ordinancerequiringgun shopshavevideo surveillancecameras.
Thisitem w asinitiallybrought fordiscussion at therequest of thepolicedepartment given a recent
incident involvingthetheft of gunsfrom a localgun shopandthepolicebeinghandicappedin their
investigation dueto thelackof video surveillancein theshop.

A review of othermunicipalitiesin W isconsin show that few to nonerequiregun shopsto havevideo
surveillance; how ever, other States and municipalities outside of W isconsin do have such
requirements.TheFederalB ureau of A lcohol,Tobacco andFirearmsandtheFirearmsIndustryTrade
A ssociation also stronglyencouragesgun shopsto havemodern surveillancesystemsin place(See:
https://w w w .atf.gov/firearms/docs/guide/safety-and-security-information-federal-firearms-
licensees-atf-p33172/download;https://w w w .nssf.org/security-basics-how -to-criminal-proof-a-gun-
store-or-shooting-range/).

It should benoted that w ith veryfew ex ceptions,such aszoning restrictions,W isconsin statelaw
ex presslyprohibitsa municipalityfrom enacting an ordinancethat regulatesthesaleof firearms.
A rguably,therequirement of a gun shopto havesurveillancecamerasisnot thesameasregulating
thesaleof firearms.TheC ityw ouldnot,forex ample,prohibit anyonefrom law fullysellinggunsor
requiringsomeoneto get a speciallicenseorpermit to sella gun,norw ouldw eberegulatingthesale
priceof a firearm,w ho can buyorsella firearm,etc.In short,thebusinessof sellingfirearmsw illbe
unchangedbythisordinance.N onetheless,theC itymaybechallengedon theordinance.

B elow isproposedlanguagefora new ordinancefortheC ity,w ith a portion of thelanguageadopted
from a similarbut moreex pansiveIllinoisstatelaw (SB 1657),w hich w asenactedearlierthisyear.

Fiscal N ote:(check one ) [ x] N otR equired [ ] B udgeted Expenditure [ ] N otB udgeted
Com m ents:

TH E C O M M O N C O UN C IL O F TH E C ITY O F B A RA B O O ,W ISC O N SIN ,D O O RD A IN A S
FO L L O W S:

1. That Section 9.31of theM unicipalC odeof theC ityof B araboo isherebycreatedto readas
follow s:

9.31 GUN SH O P SURV E IL L A N C E SY STE M RE Q UIRE M E N T.

1. P urpose.The C ommon C ouncil recognizesthe limitationsplaced on municipalities
regardingtheregulation of thesaleof firearms,whilealso recognizingtheselimitationsdo
not precludea municipalityfrom havinga requirement that gun stores,asdefinedin this
section,haveand maintain a viablevideo surveillancesystem.TheC ommon C ouncil
furtherfindsthat therearemanybenefitsto requiring gun shopshaving a viablevideo

51



surveillancesystem including,but not limited to,enhancingthesafetyof itscitizenryby
deterringcrimeandassistingwith policeinvestigations.

2. D efinitions.A sused in thissection,thefollowing wordsand phrasesshall havethe
followingmeanings:

a. “Firearm”hasthemeaningassignedto it by§167.31(1)(c),W is.Stat.

b. "Gun shop"or“shop”meansa person,firm,corporation,orotherlegalentity
that engagesin theretail orwholesalebusinessof selling,leasing,orotherwise
transferring firearmsand/ortheretail businessof repairing,manufacturing or
modifyingfirearms.

c. “P erson”hasthemeaningassignedto it by§25.01(3),C ityC ode.

3. SurveillanceSystem Required.

a. A person who ownsoroperatesagun shopwithoneormorepermanent physical
locationswithin theC ityof B araboo andwhich isopen to thepublicshallequip
saidlocation(s)with a video surveillancesystem sufficient to monitorthecritical
areasof thelocation(s)including,but not limitedto,allplaceswherefirearmsare
stored,handled,sold,transferred,orcarried.

b. Thevideo surveillancesystem shall operatewithout interruption wheneverthe
location(s)areopen to thepublic.W heneverthelocations(s)arenot open to the
public,thesystem shall betriggered bya motion detectorand begin recording
immediatelyupon detection of anymotion within themonitoredarea.

c. Thestored imagesshallbemaintained bythegun shopfora period of not less
than 90daysfrom thedateof recording.

4. E ffectiveD ate.Therequirementsof thisordinanceshallgo into effect 60calendar
daysfrom thedateof passagebytheC ommon C ouncil.

Iherebycertifythat theforegoingO rdinancew asdulypassedbytheC ommon C ouncilof the
C ityof B araboo on the_____ dayof ______________,20__,and isrecorded on page____ of
volume_____.

C ityC lerk: ________________________

52



City of Baraboo Treasurer's Report Investment 2019.xlsx 9/11/2019
Month August 2019

Bank Balance Bank

BANK INVESTMENTS Type Fund Account Term Maturity Rate BNB LGIP WF/JB CFB SUM BWD PDS FBB RCB CLARE WCCU ICB CCF BMO FICA SCHWAB Grand Total

Alma Waite Account NOW account 820 104502957 Daily 0.49% 27,012.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27,012.79

Alma Waite Trust Fund Cert of Deposit 820 6275826 36 months 7/8/21 2.85% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,000.00

6295215 36 months 10/16/19 1.35% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00

3861228 33 months 11/21/20 *2.05% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 105,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 105,000.00

54962-27444 30 months 8/21/20 1.99% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 103,006.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 103,006.15

6900492354 31 months 9/22/20 2.25% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 110,000.00 0.00 0.00 110,000.00

40032677 30 months 10/16/20 2.45% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113,355.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 113,355.42

14890100-102 21 months 6/23/20 2.80% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,567.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,567.78

Investment Pool 820 856206-3 Daily 2.17% 0.00 38,275.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,275.22

Dana Investment 820 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250,000.00 250,000.00

CDA-Grant Accounts Checking 220 1000934/1146394 Daily none 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00

CDA-Loan Accounts (blank) 983 (blank) (blank) 761,615.88 168,259.39 0.00 105,076.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,034,951.73

Fire Benefit Fund Investment 900 126696102 Daily 0.11% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 649.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 649.87

Cert of Deposit 900 6900470891 18 months 6/1/20 2.62% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 80,000.00 0.00 0.00 80,000.00

Investment Pool 900 856206-4 Daily 2.17% 0.00 19,645.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19,645.47

Fire Equipment Fund Cert of Deposit 420 6294952 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 133,418.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 133,418.57

109465199 24 months 3/23/20 2.16% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 153,240.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 153,240.00

30087 36 months 3/28/21 2.47% 0.00 0.00 0.00 153,727.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 153,727.88

14890100-104 27 months 3/20/21 2.97% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 131,606.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 131,606.72

14890100-103 21 months 6/23/20 2.80% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,567.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,567.78

173747 13 months 6/17/20 2.33% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,411.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,411.74

Dana Investment 420 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 350,000.00 350,000.00

Friends of the Library Savings 940 103035891 Daily 0.10% 28,198.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28,198.92

General Cash Account Checking / NOW 100 1000306/9830 Daily .04%/.49% 661,074.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 661,074.90

Deposit Placement 100 101066015 Daily 0.49% 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01

General Fund Money Market 100 908-640 Daily 0.25% 0.00 0.00 204,635.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 204,635.74

86190136 Daily 1.15% 0.00 0.00 0.00 956,508.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 956,508.82

163563 Daily 1.35% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 131,738.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 131,738.36

7481010 Daily 0.77% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 219,375.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 219,375.58

471582 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 261,736.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 261,736.84

10080968 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 643,699.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 643,699.29

525450 Daily 0.60% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 129,372.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 129,372.68

54962-07 Daily 0.90% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27,761.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27,761.78

5031443 Daily 0.75% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 63,139.72 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 63,139.72

20032292 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 260,000.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 260,000.10

2061232 Daily 1.15% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 105,031.01 0.00 0.00 105,031.01

Cert of Deposit 100 3846829 24 months 9/12/19 1.45% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

29565 24 months 8/28/19 1.40% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

109508099 24 months 6/08/20 2.45% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

109507299 18 months 12/8/19 2.36% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00

40032552 24 months 4/6/20 2.30% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

1800441 24 months 9/12/20 2.40% 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

1800522 18 months 3/20/20 2.33% 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00

0100 16 months 2/22/20 2.48% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

7758000603 12 months 12/7/19 2.65% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

14890100-100 27 months 5/25/21 2.97% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 151,543.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 151,543.96

1802640 12 months 3/28/20 2.50% 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

6375642 13 months 7/25/20 2.35% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

1386300 14 months 10/21/20 2.31% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00

1804491 9 months 5/28/20 2.05% 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00

Investment Pool 100 856206-1 Daily 2.17% 0.00 1,749,137.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,749,137.98

Deposit Placement 100 104791111271 Daily 2.10% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,728,085.65 0.00 1,728,085.65

10090686 Daily 0.85% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 977,566.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 977,566.51

Dana Investment 100 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

General Fund-Bond Issue Money Market 100 104557859 Daily 2.41% 357,697.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 357,697.73

Investment Pool 100 856206-2 Daily 2.17% 0.00 795,142.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 795,142.79

Library Building Fund Cert of Deposit 851 107070188 12 month 3/28/20 2.42% 150,914.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,914.96

Investment Pool 851 856206-6 Daily 2.17% 0.00 361,299.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 361,299.38

Dana Investment 851 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250,000.00 250,000.00

Library Segregated Fund NOW account 850 104551192 Daily 0.49% 123,765.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 123,765.86

Library Segregated Trust FundCert of Deposit 850 1802646 12 months 3/28/20 2.50% 0.00 0.00 0.00 245,187.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 245,187.73

54962-105 13 months 5/23/20 2.53% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225,000.00

Park House Account NOW account 890 101001035 Daily 0.49% 12,017.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,017.80

Park Impact Fees Cert of Deposit 250 40032035 24 months 3/28/21 2.56% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,952.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,952.06

40032677 24 months 5/2/20 2.30% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,077.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,077.56

Park Kuenzi Estate Cert of Deposit 830 6264646 24 months 7/22/20 2.65% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,294.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,294.00

14890100-105 23 months 6/25/21 2.47% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00

Park Segregated Fund Cert of Deposit 870 1802520 12 months 3/12/20 2.50% 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,080.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,080.78

NOW account 840/870 1000-888 Daily 0.49% 110,046.18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 110,046.18

Sewer Debt Service NOW account 960 104506359 Daily 0.49% 111,859.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 111,859.02

Sewer Depreciation Fund Cert of Deposit 960 54962-106 13 Months 8/30/20 2.34% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 179,614.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 179,614.08

Sewer Equipment Replacement FundCert of Deposit 960 30189 12 month 8/17/19 2.25% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

54962-103 13 Months 2/29/20 2.53% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 240,309.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 240,309.09

1804398 9 month 5/19/20 2.05% 0.00 0.00 0.00 166,322.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 166,322.41

NOW account 960 104522281 Daily 0.49% 129,002.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 129,002.95

Dana Investment 960 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 400,000.00

Sewer General Cert of Deposit 960 54962-0102 16 months 03/05/20 2.48% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,113.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,113.93

1373100 14 months 05/15/20 2.31% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 247,234.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 247,234.64

1802514 12 months 3/12/20 2.50% 0.00 0.00 0.00 306,484.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 306,484.67

Investment Pool 960 856206-7 Daily 2.17% 0.00 803,401.52 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 803,401.52

NOW account 960 104550099 Daily 0.49% 376,777.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 376,777.50

Dana Investment 960 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Stormwater Dana Investment 950 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00

Stormwater Equip ReplacementMoney Market 950 104565819 Daily 0.49% 58,517.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 58,517.04

Utilities Account Checking 960/970 101000292 Daily 0.04% 384,471.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 384,471.89

Water General Money Market 970 101153201 Daily 0.49% 164,900.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 164,900.76

Cert of Deposit 970 40032034 15 months 6/28/20 2.56% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 306,892.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 306,892.80

54962-0101 16 months 03/05/20 2.48% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309,010.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 309,010.67

7758000602 18 months 6/7/20 2.87%** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 203,252.15 0.00 0.00 203,252.15

54962-0104 13 months 4/18/20 2.53% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 204,323.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 204,323.11

Investment Pool 970 856206-8 Daily 2.17% 0.00 352,268.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 352,268.60

Dana Investment 970 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 275,000.00 275,000.00

Grand Total 3,457,884.19 4,287,430.35 204,635.74 2,499,388.75 594,936.11 386,738.36 261,736.84 647,615.58 1,621,265.80 501,607.32 1,599,138.81 642,852.29 1,072,689.68 648,283.16 1,728,085.65 2,775,000.00 22,929,288.63

15.08% 18.70% 0.89% 10.90% 2.59% 1.69% 1.14% 2.82% 7.07% 2.19% 6.97% 2.80% 4.68% 2.83% 7.54% 12.10% Actual

Bank Rating **** ****1/2 ***** ***** ***** ***** **** ***** ***** ***** **** *** ****

FDIC / State Insured 1,411,615.88 Unlimited 1,300,000.00 755,076.46 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 Unlimited 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 Unlimited Unlimited 14,991,880$

Collateral 6,798,835.27 2,103,633.00 1,000,000.00 496,000.00 5,162,409$

Brokerage Securites 2,775,000$

Maximum Investment 8,210,451.15 2,858,709.46 1,650,000.00 1,146,000.00 22,929,289$
Lori J Laux, Treasurer

53



TREASURER'S INVESTMENT TRANSACTION REPORT Aug-19

Average Rate of Return on Current Deposits: Benchmarks:

Avg Term

General Funds: 6.9 M 1.79% LGIP 2.17%

Total Receipts: 3,572,333.21 Utility Funds: 14.0 M 1.90%

Segregated Funds: 25.0 M 2.20% 90-day T-bill: 1.99%

Total Disbursments: 1,449,189.37 Securities w/Dana 4.15 years 2.59%

All Funds: 12.1 M 1.90% 6M CD: 1.20%

Liquid: 57% 12M CD: 1.63%

Term: 43% 18M CD: 1.98%

Policy Objectives:

Safety: ▪ $2,775,000 has been invested in marketable securities with Dana Investments, these are not guaranteed.

Liquidity: ▪ Tax settlement in August increases liquidity.

Yield: ▪ Yields in all sectors have dropped slightly.

TRANSACTIONS

# Action Type Identification Bank Acct # Note Term Maturity DateRate Amount Interest

(1) OPEN CD General Fund CLARE 1386300 14 Mo 10/21/2020 2.31% 125,000.00 Pd to MM

Comments:

(2) Reinvest CD Sewer Equipment CFB 1800189 12 Mo 8/17/2019 2.25% 162,642.37 Reinvested

CFB 1804398 9 Mo 5/19/2020 2.05% 166,322.41 Reinvested

Comments:

(3) Reinvest CD General Fund CFB 1804491 12 Mo 8/28/2019 1.40% 125,000.00 Pd to MM

CFB 1804491 9 Mo 5/28/2020 2.05% 125,000.00 Pd to MM

Comments:

INVESTMENT ADVISOR TRANSACTIONS

Yield to Worst

# Action Type Identification Price Rating Note Term/WAL Maturity DateYield - Maturity Amount Interest

(1) MATURED FFCB 3133EE5S5 100.8370 AA+ 4 years 8/5/2019 1.27% 200,000.00 Semiannual

Comments: Held for 3.75 years. Earned 1.27%

(2) CALLED FMAC 3134GB3T7 100.0000 AA+ Step coupon 3 years 11/25/2020 1.50% 150,000.00 Semiannual

Comments: Called after 1 year 9 months. Earned 1.86%

(3) BUY SBA 83164MUT4 100.8750 NR Adjustable rate (quarterly) 4.34 years 5/25/2031 2.46% /2.60% $150,000.00 Monthly

10% Prepay

Comments: Monthly principal payments

(4) BUY SBA 83164MUL1 100.0000 NR Adjustable rate (quarterly) 5.95 years 12/25/2025 2.54%-2.60% $150,000.00 Monthly

12% Prepay

Comments: Monthly principal payments

54



PERMIT TYPE ISSUED YTD EST COST YTD FEES YTD ISSUED YTD EST COST YTD FEES YTD

Commercial, New 0 1 $0.00 $800,000.00 $0.00 $2,272.63 0 1 $0.00 $960,000.00 $0.00 $2,806.06

Commercial Addition 1 2 $350,000.00 $1,057,895.00 $310.00 $1,342.74 0 2 $0.00 $122,000.00 $0.00 $786.20

Commercial, Alterations 0 15 $0.00 $1,372,357.00 $0.00 $7,955.61 2 21 $1,110,000.00 $3,107,131.00 $2,635.00 $10,775.92

Commercial, Razing 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Residential , New SF 4 13 $868,956.00 $2,610,956.00 $3,980.66 $11,431.41 1 4 $170,000.00 $1,031,000.00 $830.08 $3,821.30

Residential, New Duplex 0 3 $0.00 $880,000.00 $0.00 $2,887.54 0 1 $0.00 $250,000.00 $0.00 $1,096.30

Residential, Additions 3 9 $177,025.00 $297,525.00 $534.48 $1,353.80 0 4 $0.00 $147,750.00 $0.00 $477.97

Residential Remodel 4 23 $74,000.00 $518,563.00 $317.50 $2,628.83 2 36 $40,600.00 $529,508,000.00 $238.20 $3,436.87

Residential, Accessory Razing 0 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60.00 0 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30.00

Residential Dwelling Razing 0 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30.00 0 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30.00

Roofing/Siding/Windows 36 181 $687,300.00 $2,323,517.00 $3,954.00 $14,777.00 17 128 $184,600.00 $1,595,303.00 $1,131.00 $9,671.00

Garage/Sheds/Deck/Fence 10 44 $27,415.00 $196,061.00 $615.00 $2,790.00 13 52 $40,914.00 $256,456.00 $840.00 $3,555.00

Multi-Family Units 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plumbing Only 2 3 $78,445.00 $86,067.00 $120.00 $180.00 0 1 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $60.00

Electrical Only 12 39 $93,086.00 $277,363.00 $800.00 $2,680.00 5 31 $46,545.00 $110,314.00 $380.00 $1,008.00

HVAC Only 1 4 $8,751.00 $25,353.00 $60.00 $240.00 2 5 $14,100.00 $44,800.00 $120.00 $300.00

Sign Permits 4 17 $15,000.00 $48,500.00 $240.00 $1,410.00 1 16 $5,000.00 $30,800.00 $120.00 $1,290.00

Misc. Permits 0 5 $0.00 $70,000.00 $0.00 $210.00 1 6 $48,000.00 $75,500.00 $120.00 $480.00

TOTALS 77 362 2379978 $10,564,157.00 $10,931.64 $52,249.56 44 310 $1,659,759.00 $537,244,054.00 $6,414.28 $39,624.62

REPORT OF BUILDING INSPECTION

Construction, Plumbing, Electrical, HVAC, Commercial

AUGUST
20192018

55



Finance/Personnel Committee – Dennis Thurow Committee Room, #205 September 10, 2019
Members Present: Petty, Thurow, Sloan
Absent:
Others Present: Mayor Palm, Adm. Geick, E. Truman, B. Zeman, C. Haggard, K. Stieve, J. Bergin, T. Pinion, M.
Hardy, Ald. Ellington, Pat Cannon, MSA, Rob Nelson, Lacey Steffes, Doug Mering, Rebekah Stelling, Kilton
Holmes, Beth Persche

Call to Order –Ald. Petty called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. noting compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to approve the minutes of August 27, 2019 and carried unanimously. Moved
by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable – Moved by Sloan seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council for approval of the

accounts payable for $991,197.64. Motion carried unanimously.
b) MSA Professional Services & CR Architecture + Design for the Fire & EMS Building project for the

purpose of (i) Site Selection and (ii) Preliminary Design, with a contract price not to exceed $725,000,
not inclusive of reimbursables Adm. Geick explained that this is the preliminary steps to the site study and
other work on this project. T. Pinion confirmed that this agreement can be terminated at any time by either
party. Ald. Sloan questioned if the agreement with MSA was unanimous among the selection committee.
Adm. Geick noted that the decision was not unanimous at the beginning but this was certainly the
committee’s recommendation. He also explained that the committee considered not only the experience of
the firms, but the work they have generally one within this area as well as other communities. Moved by
Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council. Motion carried unanimously.

c) Approve 2020 Parks, Recreation & Forestry Department fee schedules M. Hardy presented the 2020 fee
schedule. He noted that they do look at increasing Civic Center rent fees by the inflation index; therefore,
the rent does include an increase of 1.5%. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council.
Motion carried unanimously.

d) Approve the 80% Rent Discount for Boys & Girls Club 2020 Civic Center Lease M. Hardy noted that
the Parks Commission has recommended to continue with the reduction in rent for the Boys & Girls Club.
Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council. Motion carried unanimously.

e) Approve the 80% Rent Discount for Senior Center 2020 Civic Center Lease M. Hardy noted that the
Parks Commission has also recommended continuing with the reduction in rent for the Senior Center.
Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council. Motion carried unanimously.

f) Approve Resolution providing for the sale of approximately $1,255,000 taxable obligation refunding
bonds C. Haggard noted that this was presented by Dawn Gunderson at a prior Finance meeting and the
savings. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council. Motion carried unanimously.

g) Approve the purchase of a 2015 Chevy Equinox squad car for $15,000 and $2,000 for police vehicle
equipment It was noted that the police department recently sold a truck to the fire department; the funds
from the sale of that vehicle will be used to purchase this vehicle. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to
recommend to Council. Motion carried unanimously.

h) Approve the purchase of a replacement taxi vehicle C. Haggard explained that because the taxi service
has requested a larger passenger van, which is a vehicle that is not included in the State’s contract, we were
required to go out for bids. Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council. Motion
carried unanimously.

Informational Items
 Finance Director C. Haggard presented a financial analysis of future debt
 City Attorney’s report on insurance claims – None.
 Review & Discussion of RFP’s for Agenda & Minutes Management Software – Att. Truman will

schedule presentations for the 3 lowest bids received.

Adjournment – Moved by Sloan, seconded by Thurow and carried to adjourn at 6:44pm.
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

56



       

 

Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 

 

Call to Order & Roll Call 

• The July 24, 2019 meeting of the Baraboo District Ambulance Service Commission was called 
to order by Puttkamer at 7:00 pm.  

• Commissioners present: Dave Kitkowski, Darlene Otto, Joel Petty, Randy Puttkamer, Scott 
Sloan, Tim Stieve, and Phil Wedekind 

• Also present were:  Attorney Maffei, Mayor Palm, Administrator Geick, Chief Sechler, Deputy Chief 
Rago, Johnson, Koepp, Larson, N. Rago, Seefeld, Snow, Vande Hei, Willer, Media 

• Puttkmer confirmed that the meeting had been posted in compliance with the Open Meeting 
Law. 

• The agenda was adopted with a motion made by Sloan, seconded by Petty.  Voice vote, all ayes.  
Motion carried. 

 
Approval of Previous Minutes 

• A motion to approve the June 26, 2019 minutes was made by Wedekind, seconded by Sloan. 
Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 
 

Public Invited to Speak 

• None 
 

Appearances/Announcements/Correspondence 

• None 
 

Reports 

1. Legal Counsel Report – No report. 
2. Treasurer’s Report – No report. 
3. President’s Report – No report. 
4. Chief’s Report – Sechler reviewed the written report that was submitted in the Commission packet. 

 
Consent Agenda 

1. Approve check details and online payments for June 16, 2019 – July 13, 2019 in the amount of 

$85,232.19.   

2. Approve write-offs in the amount of $286.49. 

A motion to approve as presented was made by Petty seconded by Sloan.  Voice vote, all ayes.  

Motion carried. 

 

Old Business 

1. Update on the progress of the proposed new Fire/EMS building.  Sechler reviewed the timeline 

for the various steps associated with the proposed new Fire / EMS building.  The list of 

architectural firms was narrowed down to five entities, and they will be interviewed this Friday 

(July 26th).  A final selection of the architectural firm is anticipated to be determined that day, 

with a recommendation going to the City Council at their next meeting in August.  A question 

was asked about the percentage of space that would be used by Baraboo EMS, as well as the 

percentage of the cost that Baraboo EMS would be expected to pay towards the new building.  

Sechler explained that the initial architectural fees would be covered by the City, and that it was 

57



       

 

Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 

 

not yet known how much space would be used by Baraboo EMS.  As well, the costs associated 

with leasing the space within the building were not yet known. 

 

New Business 

1. Sechler shared that he had met with the President and Vice-president of St. Clare Hospital this 

past week.  Discussion included the process for scheduling MTM and voluntary psych transfers, 

with an effort to assure payments for those types of trips.  There is a new interim ED Director 

that Sechler will be meeting with in the next month, to work on the process of their staff calling 

MTM for pre-authorization on non-emergency transfers.  The contract with the Hospital still 

needs to be reviewed and agreed upon by their administration, but the intent of the contract is 

that the Hospital would be the payer of last repost, if no other payers were able to pay the claim 

for a transfer originating with the Hospital.  Sloan asked if an agreement could be reached that 

either a pre-approval was given, or the Hospital would have to pay the difference.  The issue is 

that there are different rules to follow for Medicare/Medicaid and MTM, as compared to other 

payers, so it is difficult to create a carte blanche agreement that addresses all the differences.  

Sechler and Kitkowski will be working together on this (with the Hospital) to bring about the 

best solution possible. 

 

2. At the last Commission meeting, it had been requested that the current Baraboo EMS 

organizational chart be presented at this Commission meeting, along with a brief synopsis of the 

staff positions, and job duties.  Stieve asked why the current IT / Logistics / Billing Coordinator 

was not part of the proposed Billing plan--that is going to be discussed as part of the next agenda 

item--since he is listed as such in the current organizational chart.  Sechler responded that the 

intent is to transition the Billing duties associated with that position back to the Billing 

department staff between now and the end of the year.  Other duties would then be assigned to 

that position. 

 

3. Sechler presented the plan that has been developed for the Billing Department.  Seefeld is back 

to working 40 hours a week in the Billing office.  Seefeld and the other Billing staff are taking 

care of reworking and resubmitting the rejected / denied claims; sending out secondary and self-

pay invoices; and other general follow-up that is needed for a claim to be paid.  Sechler then 

reviewed a number of items in the document that previous Commissions had discussed and made 

decisions on, to verify what the current Commission would like to adjust or change, related to 

any of the current Billing practices for accepting payments.  The items discussed are as follows: 

a. Baraboo EMS does not accept offers of immediate payments from insurance companies or 

private pay individuals that are at a discounted rate.  No change to this practice. 

b. Baraboo EMS does not accept paper-style credit cards for immediate payment.  After 

discussion, there was a Motion by Stieve, seconded by Sloan to approve to accept payments 

by credit card (with no discounts) with the understanding that the Service would absorb the 

associated credit card fees.  Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

58



       

 

Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 

 

c. Baraboo EMS does not currently add on a convenience fee for credit card payments that are 

received from self-pay patients.  No change to this practice, as there could be issues related to 

Medicare / Medicaid recipients. 

d. Baraboo EMS does not offer any discounts for immediate payment in full that are received from 

self-pay individuals.  No change to this practice, as the Service does offer a ‘no interest’ payment 

plan, in lieu of a discount. 

e. Baraboo EMS does not utilize a 3rd party entity for billing duties.  After discussion, Stieve 

expressed his displeasure with the plan as presented.  He then requested that outside Billing 

services be contacted to obtain a proposal for services, to determine what the rates would be, 

to provide Billing services to Baraboo EMS.  The proposals could include options for “in an 

emergency” / back-up Billing services, as well as for performing all Billing services.  Sechler 

was directed to contact various Billing Companies, and compile their proposals, to be 

presented at a future Commission meeting. 

 

4. Snow presented the material and forms related to a Line of Credit with the Baraboo State Bank.  

Maffei had two points for the Commission to consider:  1) Any actions from this meeting would 

be only to set up a Line of Credit as an option for future use.  Any withdrawals would require 

another meeting of the Members to authorize any withdrawals.   2) Maffei noted that this is a 

demand note, which means that the Bank can exercise an option to require it due immediately at 

any point.  He suggested that it would be preferable to have the ‘payable on demand’ language 

removed from the note.  A motion was made by Petty, seconded by Wedekind to recommend at 

the Member’s meeting to accept the contractual agreement with the Baraboo State Bank, for a 

Line of Credit, for a total of $500,000, with the understanding that no borrowing would occur 

until another Member’s meeting approved any requested transfers.  The authorized signers will 

be the Commission President, Secretary, and/or Treasurer.  Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

 

Commissioner Comments & Future Agenda Items 

• The Commission requested that a financial update / billing update be placed as an agenda item 
for review at next month’s Commission meeting. 

• Please mark your calendars for the next Commission meetings, which will be the following: 
o August 28, 2019 
o September 25, 2019 

 
Adjournment 

• Motion to adjourn by Sloan, seconded by Petty at 8:31 pm. Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Dana Sechler, Chief / EMS Director 
Baraboo District Ambulance Service  

59



Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 
Finance Ad Hoc Committee 

 
 

 
Call to Order & Roll Call 

• The July 24, 2019 meeting of the Ad Hoc Committee was called to order by Puttkamer at 6:45 pm.  

• Committee members present:  Petty and Puttkamer.  Also present:  Otto, Kitkowski, Sloan, Wedekind, 
Mayor Palm, Chief Sechler, Deputy Chief Rago, Koepp, Snow, Larsen 

• Puttkamer confirmed that the meeting had been posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law. 

• The agenda was adopted with a motion made by Petty, seconded by Puttkamer.  Voice vote, all 
ayes.  Motion carried. 

 
Approval of Previous Minutes 

• A motion to approve the June 26, 2019 minutes was made by Petty, seconded by Puttkamer. 
Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 
 

Public Invited to Speak 

• No public comments. 
 
Appearances / Announcements / Correspondence / Reports 

• None 
 

New Business 
1. Approve check details and online payments for June 16, 2019 – July 13, 2019 in the amount of 

$85,232.19.  A motion to approve as presented was made by Petty, seconded by Puttkamer.  Voice 
vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 
 

2. Approve write-offs in the amount of:  $286.49. 
A motion to approve as presented was made by Petty, seconded by Puttkamer.  Voice vote, all ayes.  

Motion carried. 

 

Additional Comments & Future Agenda Item 

• None 
 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Committee, a motion to adjourn was made by Petty, 
seconded by Puttkamer.  Voice vote, motion carried at 6:50 pm. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       Dana Sechler, Chief / EMS Director 
       Baraboo District Ambulance Service  

60



A dministra tive C ommittee S eptemb er5 , 2 0 1 9
P resent: A ld erpersons JohnA lt, JohnEllingtonand H eatherKierzek
A bsent: N one
A lsoP resent: M ayor, M ike P alm; C ity A d ministrator, Ed Geic k; C ity A ttorney, Emily Tru man, Financ e D irec tor, C ynthia

H aggard and C ity C lerk, B rend a Zeman.
C itizenP resent: N one

The meetingwas c alled toord erbyC hairmanJohnA ltat8 :0 0 A M C D T., withrollc alland notingc omplianc e withthe O penM eetings
L aw.

M oved by Ellingtontoapprove the minu tes ofA u gu st1 9 , 2 0 1 9 , sec ond ed by Kierzekand u nanimou sly c arried .

M otionby Ellingtontoapprove amend ed agend a, sec ond ed by Kierzekand u nanimou sly c arried .

Review and recommendation to the Council - Liquor Licenses.

M otiontorec ommend toapprove and move ontoC ou nc ilthe B ella Vita C afé , L L C liqu orlic ense by Ellington, sec ond ed byKierzek
and u nanimou sly c arried .

M otion to rec ommend to d eny and move on to C ou nc ilthe Red S hed Gard en & Gifts L iqu orlic ense by Kierzek, sec ond ed by
Ellingtonand u nanimou sly c arried .

M otion to rec ommend to approve and move on to C ou nc ilthe S t. JosephC atholic P arish, FishFry, 1 0 - 1 1 - 2 0 1 9 and S t. Joseph
C atholic P arish, FishFry, 1 1 - 0 8 - 2 0 1 9 pic nic lic enses by Ellington, sec ond ed by Kierzekand u nanimou sly c arried .

Consider Operator’s Licenses

M otiontoapprove and move ontoC ou nc ilA u tu mnM orittz, Q u ind t’s Towne L ou nge; C helsey Riley, B arabooB u rgerC ompany and
P au lFu ller, B arabrew operatorlic enses by Kierzek, sec ond ed by Ellingtonand u nanimou sly c arried .

M otion to d eny and move on to C ou nc ilM ic helle Glaser, Red S hed Gard en & Gifts operatorlic ense by Ellington, sec ond ed by
Kierzekand u nanimou sly c arried .

M otionto approve and move on toC ou nc ilW illiam M oorman, Rogu es & Ru ffians Renaissanc e Faire, 1 0 - 1 2 - 2 0 1 9 & 1 0 - 1 3 - 2 0 1 9 ;
John B ak, Rogu es & Ru ffians Renaissanc e Faire, 1 0 - 1 2 - 2 0 1 9 & 1 0 - 1 3 - 2 0 1 9 ; O u sia W hitaker-D evau lt, Rogu es & Ru ffians
Renaissanc e Faire, 1 0 - 1 2 - 2 0 1 9 & 1 0 - 1 3 - 2 0 1 9 and JosephB aird , Rogu es & Ru ffians Renaissanc e Faire, 1 0 - 1 3 - 2 0 1 9 temporary
operatorlic enses.

M emberc omments
The nextmeetingwillbe O c tober7 , 2 0 1 9 at8 :1 5 A M C D T. M eetingloc ation willbe 1 0 1 S ou thB ou levard . M oved by Ellington,
sec ond ed by Kierzekand u nanimou sly c arried .

M otiontoad jou rnby Kierzek, sec ond ed by Ellingtonand u nanimou sly c arried . M eetingad jou rned at8 :0 8 A M C D T.

Respec tfu lly su bmitted ,
C ynthia H aggard , Financ e D irec tor

61



UW-BARABOO / SAUK COUNTY CAMPUS COMMISSION MINUTES 
UW-Baraboo/Sauk County Campus, Executive Dining Room 
Baraboo, Wisconsin  Thursday, August 15, 2019 
 
Members present: Phil Wedekind, Alene Bolin, Tom Geimer, Tom Kolb, Cynthia Haggard, Bryant Hazard, Ed Gieck, 
 and Scott Von Asten 
Members Absent:     
Others Present:   Ed Janairo, Peter Vedro, Jesse Arias, John Christensen, Mike Compton, David Olson, Mike Palm  
   and Genevieve Raddatz 
 
Chair Wedekind called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was verified.   
 
MOTION (Kolb/Von Asten) adopt the agenda. Motion carried uanimiously. 
 
MOTION (Kolb/Hazard) to approve the minutes of the regular meeting on July 18 2019.  Motion carried unanimously.   
  
Public Comment:  None. 
 
 
Communications:  None.   
 
 
Facilities planning and maintenance report: 
Arias, Facilities Director gave the committee a brief update on proposed projects (report attached).    
 
 
Consideration of resolution honoring Tom Geimer 
MOTION (Bolin/Von Asten) to approve. Motion carried.  
 
 
Financial report and approval of vouchers. 
Haggard gave the committee a brief update (report attached).   
MOTION (Kolb/Geick) to approve the bills in the amount of $9,145.60.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Approval of $15,000 for Master Plan upgrade:  
MOTON (Bolin/Kolb) to approve $15,000 for Buildings Services to hire professional for master plan upgrade. 
 
 
Consideration of amendment of the bylaws for the University of Wisconsin Baraboo/Sauk County Campus Commission 
Article 3 Section 1 to remove the requirement that the public member be outside the City of Baraboo 
MOTION (Von Asten/Bolin) to postpone for one month. Motion carried. 
 
 
Update on Bluffstone: 
Meeting with UW Platteville.  
 
 
Update on student housing. 
Oral update by Genevieve Raddatz. 
 
 
Deans’ Report. 
Janairo gave the committee a brief update (report attached).   
 

62



UW-BARABOO / SAUK COUNTY CAMPUS COMMISSION MINUTES 
UW-Baraboo/Sauk County Campus, Executive Dining Room 
Baraboo, Wisconsin  Thursday, August 15, 2019 
 
 
MOTION (Geick/Von Asten) to adjourn until Thursday, September 19, 2019 at 8:00 a.m.  Motion carried.    
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
Alene Bolin 
Administrative Coordinator 

63



64


